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April 12 2013

Dear Shareholders Customers Employees and Friends

We are pleased to provide you with the 2012 Annual Report of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc

Net income for the
year

totaled $6621000 or $1.84 per diluted share for 2012 and represents 12.16%

return on average equity and .34% return on average assets These earnings are very strong in light of the

economic conditions and in comparison to our 2011 earnings The 2012 earnings reflect 61.5% increase

over 2011 earnings of $4099000

Book value
per

share increased to $15.96 at December 31 2012 compared to $14.04 at December 31

2011

Total assets increased slightly and totaled $5061 75000 at
year end an increase of 2.6% over last year

end Total loans including loans held for sale declined 5.0% due to soft loan demand coupled with normal

loan repayments but deposits increased 1.4% in 2012

Asset quality continues to be primary focus Non-performing assets declined during the
year

to .93%

of total assets which is very manageable Our capital ratios continued to grow and we remain well above all

regulatory 11well capitalized guidelines

We repurchased approximately 150000 shares of our common stock during the year at an average price

of $8 which is very
reasonable considering our book value of $1 96 and the recent trading price of our

stock in the $14.00 per
share range

We are completing our new branch office in Evans Georgia which will open in early May Evans

has always been in our long-term growth plans and
represents

the business and governmental downtown

of Columbia County Columbia County is one of the fastest growing counties in Georgia and this office

represents our third office there

We invite you to attend our Annual Meeting of our Shareholders to be held at 400 pm on Monday May

20 2013 in the lobby of our Main Office at 3527 Wheeler Road Augusta GA

Thank you for your interest and support of your Company and your Bank

Sincerely

RemerY Brinson Ill

President Chief Executive Officer





Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

MARKET NFORMATON
The Companys common stock trades on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol GECR The market for

the Companys common stock must be characterized as limited market due to its relatively low trading volume and lack

of analyst coverage The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the quarterly high and low sales prices per

share as reported by the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board These quotations also reflect inter-dealer prices without retail

mark-ups mark-downs or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions The share prices below

reflect all stock splits

High Low

Fiscal
year

ended December 31 2012

First Quarter 9.25 6.75

Second Quarter 9.45 7.00

Third Quarter $10.75 8.86

Fourth Quarter $12.98 $10.70

Fiscal year ended December 31 2011

First Quarter 9.00 7.10

Second Quarter $10.50 7.65

Third Quarter 8.75 6.75

Fourth Quarter 7.50 6.30

HOLDERS OF COMMON STOCK

As of March 20 2013 the number of holders of record of the Companys common stock was approximately 534

DVDENDS
Cash dividends of $432000 and $0 were paid by the Company during the

years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively The Company commenced paying quarterly dividend of $0.04 per
share in the second

quarter
of 2012

Future dividends if any will be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in light of circumstances existing

from time to time including the Companys growth financial condition and results of operations the continued existence

of the restrictions described below on the Banks ability to pay dividends and other factors that the Board of Directors of the

Company considers relevant In addition the Board of Directors of the Company may determine from time to time that it is

prudent to pay special nonrecurring cash dividends in addition to or in lieu of regular cash dividends Such special dividends

will depend upon the financial performance of the Company and will take into account its capital position No special

dividend is presently contemplated

Because the Companys principal operations are conducted through the Bank the Company generates cash to pay dividends

primarily through dividends paid to it by the Bank Accordingly any dividends paid by the Company will depend on the

Banks earnings capital requirements financial condition and other factors Under Georgia law the Bank may pay dividends

only when and if the Bank is not insolvent In addition dividends may not be declared or paid at any time when the Bank

does not have combined paid-in capital and appropriated retained earnings equal to at least 20% of the Banks capital

stock Moreover dividends may not he paid by the Bank without the prior approval of the Georgia Department of Banking

and Finance the Georgia Banking Department if the dividends are in excess of specified amounts fixed by the Georgia

Banking Department



LQUUY OMP SAflON PFAN NFORMATKN

FO Com any rre ity has three equity compensation plans the 997 Stock Option Plan which was approved by

sharehc Per \rnended and Restated 2004 ncentive lan which was approved by shareholders and iii the

.7 rector uity Ire itive Ian which has not been approved by shareholders The follow ng table provides information of

mh gard ng the Companys then existing compensation plans and arrangements

PLAN CAEEC RY
Fqu corp tion pkns approved

secu ilders

997 Stoci Op on Plan

2004 cc ye Pla

-quit co tion plans not

pproV urity holders

lotil

The Diredors uits Ii entive Plan provides that non-employee directorr of the Company and the Banc may elect to

orrp anys common stock in lieu of receiving
cash for director fees earned in each calendar quarter

rchase price for shares acquired under the plan was $2.00 less than the average closing market prce of

uoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board or other national quotation service for the ten business

trade oi the Companys common sto reported prior to the purchase date However in january 0l

such that the purchase price for shares acquired under the plan is equal to 85o of the average closing

oraparivs common stock for the last ten trading days of each quarter as repcrted on the Over-thr

on-employee director may join the plan at any time during the last seven days of each calendar

quity Incentive lan also provides non-employee directors of the Company and the Bank annual

torm of base award shares plus bonus shares for service as Board chairman p1 bonus shares

omriittes Non-employee advisory board members also qualify to receive annual award shares from

neritive Plan provided they meet an agreed upon annual attendance requirement During 20 the

30 shares of stock as retainer stock and 13154 shares of stock in lieu of cash for directors fees Dui ing

mended the Plan to authorize the issuance of 300000 shares in the aggregate

SS JEE WTH RLGSTRATON LINDER THE SECURFS /1 OF 1943

uring 2012 gate
of 11350 shares were issued in payment for the annual retainer fees to certain directors svithoLit

gstrdo ndcr Securities Act of 1933 as amended These shares were issued in reliance upon the exemption under the

ae itics pm iv by Section 42 of such Act

ICIIASES

fh table lovv
pr

ides information related to stock repurchases by the Company during the fourth quarter of 2012 Che

iurchase was no ot ary ongoing stock repurchase plan maintained
lay

the Company The purchase was authori7ed by

Ti Co ipa hoar of directors
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Sekcfed Finanda Data

Our selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the
years

ended December 31 2008 through 2012

is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements Our audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31

2012 and 2011 and results of operations
for each of the years in the two year period ended December 31 2012 are included

elsewhere in this report All
years

have been restated as necessary
for stock dividends and stock splits

At and for the Years Ended December 31

2008

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Assets 460828

Investment securities and FHLB stock 59795

Loans held for investment 336291

Loans held for sale LHFS 28402

Allowance for loan losses 4284

Deposits
377009

Repurchase agreements
5859

Long-term debt 25400

Short-term debt

Other liabilities 3476

Shareholders equity
39084

Selected Results of Operations Data

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Net interest income after provision for

provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before taxes

Income tax expense benefit __________

Net inome
__________ __________ __________

Per Share Data

Net income basic

Net income diluted

Book value

Dividends

Weighted average
number of shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands except per share data

2010 2009

506175

132760

265831

48432

5954

416956

3333

25028

4533

56325

20569

3682

16887

605

493252

100283

285614

45227

6804

411395

3565

25000

2847

50445

22323

5702

16621

1727

495311

79431

316809

46570

7866

414749

3467

25000

7119

44976

24409

7290

17119

8355

.$ 484013

47289

336849

581 35

5072

405240

7297

25000

3203

43273

24604

9722

14882

3082

17492 14894 8764 11800

14653

9284
2663

6621

1.84

1.84

15.96

0.12

11170

20127

5937

1838

4099

1.15

1.15

14.04

0.00

26371

13038

13333

1456

11877

9920

17745

4052

1252

2800

0.82

1.80

11.31

0.00

13246

20543

1467

66

0.44

0.44

12.72

0.00

14157

20902

5055

1303

3752

1.08

1.07

12.37

0.00

3599431 3561064 3519408 3484309 3426860

3599431 3561064 351 9408 3492871 3503856

At and for the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets .34o 0.82% 0.32o 0.7900 0.62

Return on average equity 12.16 8.45c 3.41 8.93o 7.36c

Netinterestmargin1 3.71% 3.53% 3.83% 3.37% 3.15%

Efficiency ratio 72.48o 72.42o 67.65 71 .98o 76.3

Loan excl LHFS to deposit ratio b3.b 69.43o 76.39% 83.12% 89.20

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming loans to total loans .24 2.34c .72o .57o 1.39c

Nonperforming assets to total loans

excl LHFS OREO 3.60 5.03% 2.82o 3.12

Allowance for loan losses to

nonperforming loans 52.86 87.98c 125.710o 81.94 84.65c

Allowance for loan losses to

total loans excl LHFS 2.24o 2.38c 2.48% 1.51 1.27o

Capital Ratios

Average equity to average assets .04c 9.66% 9.36 8.810o 8.41

Leverage ratio 11.1 9.74o 9.32c 8.96o 8.59c

Tier risk-based capital ratio 5.34o 12.11 11.75 0.50 9.82o

Total risk-based capital ratio 6.59o 3.37o 3.01 11.74c 10.91o

Non-tax eqoivoleni



The Consolidated Managements Discussoin and Anaysis of Fnanda
Condition and Results of Operaflons

Ihe fo wr oori provuies information about the major components of the results of operations and financi II

dto lqud capita resources of the Company and Bank and should be read in conjunction with the

or ohdat Fir al Statements included elsewhere this
report

hr acw unting id orti ig policies of the Company and Bank are in accordance with accounting principles generally

cpt the Statas nd conform to general practices within the banking industry Application of these principles

iirc
iagr to make cstimates or judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

10 accompanyi lIt hese estimates are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements

ccor iingl as fbi ii rmation changes the tinancial statements could reflect different estimates or judgments Certain

101 nherenb greater reliance on the use of estimates and as such have greater possibility of producuig results

tha cocd IT 1k ll dif1rent than originally reported

ac judkc tr ie acccssary when assems and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value wh decline

ie al ic of an cai nec on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-clown or valuation

escrve to es iF lo iei or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded
contingent upon future event Carrying assets

aed abc ti at alue
inherently results in more financial statement volatility The fair values and the information used to

rd ftc vaiua idjustrnerts for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quo ed market prices or are Provided by
tfx if d-party so ccs wien available When third-party information is not available valuation adjustments are estimated

ood utl by mc arag me it primarily through the use of internal cash flow modeling techniques

anagcrnent vi ri cal accoun ing policies to he those that are highly dependent on subjective or complex judgments
estimates ar awn ions and where changes in those estimates and assumptions could have significant impact on the

ri ir cial sta mer

Al Wd Lc it S5CS

he allos\ irce in losses
represcnts managements estimcate of probable credit losses inherert in the loan portfolio

imatin the imo of tha allowance for loan losses recluires significant judgment and the use of estimates related

thc Imnol nt and tir in of expe ted tuture cash flows on impaired loans estimated losses on non-impaired loans based on

hish re ss exp and considerahon of current economic trends and conditions all of which may be suscept ble to

gn fLa ct ang l1 loan portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet Loan losses

ir harg aft the llowance while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance

piovis
for ocs is charged to operations based on managements periodic evaluation of the factors previously

nentionc rs her pertinent factors

Is of spec tic and general compcnents The specific component relates to loans that are individually

when sed on current information and events it is probable that the Company sr ill he unable to

ie according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement These analyses involvc high degree of

the amount of loss associated with specific loans including estimating the amount and timing of

collateral values The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss

or current factors The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based the

periencd by the Company over the most recent yece This actual loss experience is supplemented with

rs bascd on the risks present for each portfolio segment These economic factors include consideration

if arid trends in delincjuencies and impaired loans levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries

cc eai trends in volunie and terms of loans effects of any changos in risk sd action and underss riting

gcs in lending policies proceduies and practices experience ability and depth lending

dc ant staff national and local onomic trends and conditions industry ccndihons amid effects of

certral irs

icc an ny Ia ffecti ig the allowance for loan losses some are quantitative while others require qualitative

iIT it Althouch ianagemcnt believes its
process

for determining the allowance adequately considers all possible factors

fiat iul poten iy
result in credit losses the

process
includes

subjective elements and may be suwe atible to significant

ch inge lot extcri actual outcomes differ from managements estimates additional provisions for loan losses could he

aquire ha on iversely affect the Banks cc flings or financial position in future
per

ods

\4ortna in/rio rivativo

oan umi mcnt ose underlying mortgage loans at origination will be held for sale upon funding If the oan are

er vitiv nsfruc en Loan co aim itments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet in her assets and othei

Iiov ince cii

las fiec is imp

colt ant all iour tL

jud mcnt ri esti

future cas ows

experien lj
us

ci sI story

other cc no mc
of tie folowing Icy

for if rw st cc it

slant ardn them Ii
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liabilities at fair value with changes in their fair values recognized in other non-interest income At the inception of loan

commitment the Bank generally will simultaneously enter into best efforts forward commitment to protect
the Bank from

losses on sales of the loans underlying the loan commitment by securing the ultimate sale price
and delivery date of the loan

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell when

acquired establishing new cost basis If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is recorded

through expense Operating costs after acquisition are expensed Costs related to the development and improvement of other

real estate owned are capitalized

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions Fair value

estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other

factors especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could

significantly affect these estimates

Additional information on the Company and Banks Critical Accounting Policies can be found in the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 27

CONSOUDATED HNANCAE NFORMATON
Certain consolidated financial information for the Company and Bank as of and for the

years
ended December 31 2012 and

2011 is presented below

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Total Net Income Total Net Income
Assets Loss Assets Loss

Dollars in thousands

GECR consolidated The Company 506175 6621 493252 4099
The Bank 505919 6775 $493073 4275

Parent Company Only 54 $176

The Parent Company only incurred $229140 and $252278 in operational costs for the years ended December 31 2012

and 2011 respectively The operational costs were partially offset by income tax benefits of $74990 and $76002 for 2012

and 2011 respectively In total the net loss for the Parent Company only was $154150 and $1 76276 for the
years

ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively.The Parent Company only received $1500000 in dividends from the Bank

during 2012 not included in the table above The Parent Companys operational costs are primarily funded by proceeds from

the exercise of stock options and the dividends received from the Bank

Results of Operations Comparison of 2012 and 2011

BAlANCE SHEET

The Companys total assets increased $1 2.9 million or 2.6% to $506.2 million at December 31 2012 from $493.3 million at

December 31 2011 Average total assets were $493.0 million in 2012 and $502.4 million in 2011 decrease of $9.4 million

or 1.9% Loans held for sale increased from $45.2 million at December 31 2011 to $48.4 million at December 31 2012 an

increase of $3.2 million or 7.1% Substantially all loans held for sale originated by the Bank consist of well-secured single family

residential mortgage loans which are originated
with sales commitment and are sold in the secondary market shortly after

origination thus greatly reducing the Banks credit risk All other loans net of allowance totaled $259.9 million at December

31 2012 compared to $278.8 million at December 31 2011 decrease of $18.9 million or 6.8% Commercial and industrial

loans increased $0.9 million or 5.0% from $1 8.9 million at December 31 2011 to $19.8 million at December31 2012

Real estate residential loans decreased $1.1 million or 1.9% from $56.6 million at December 31 2011 to $55.5 million

at December 31 2012 and real estateconstruction land and land development loans decreased $17.9 million or24.2%

from $73.8 million at December 31 2011 to $55.9 million at December 31 2012 Real estate commercial loans decreased

$1.0 million or 0.8% from $131.8 million at December 31 2011 to $130.8 million at December 31 2012 Consumer loans

decreased $0.8 million or 6.8% from $4.7 million at December 31 2011 to $3.9 million at December 31 2012 The

decreases in most categories are primarily the result of weaker loan demand pay-downs of existing loans and transfers to other

real estate owned The decline in loan demand coupled with growth in deposit levels continued the recent trend of abundant

liquidity resulting in increases in securities available-for-sale Securities available-for-sale increased $32.5 million or 32.4% to

$1 32.8 million at December 31 2012 compared to $1 00.3 million at December31 2011 Cash and due from banks decreased

$4.6 million or 13.2% to $30.3 million at December 31 2012 from $34.9 million at December 31 2011 At December 31

2012 and 2011 interest bearing balances with correspondent banks totaled $1 9.3 million and $25.6 million respectively

The allowance for loan losses was $6.0 million at December 31 2012 and $6.8 million at December 31 2011 This



iesc nt deere of $0.8 million or 2.5% The decrease in the allowance is based epon managerrsnts rating and

is essr it 11th lortlolio and the credit risk inherent in the portfolio and is partially due to the decline in the loan

im lhe Bank it of allowance for loan losses to gross loans excluding loans held for sale was 2.24c at December
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FHLB prepayment penalty of $392000 for the early payoff of two FHLB advances Salaries and employee benefits increased

$446000 or 3.8% primarily due to an increase in commissions and incentives This increase is due to the increase in volume

of mortgage originations Additional software programs were implemented during 2012 which increased data processing by

$230000 or 27.6%

ASSETS

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Loans net of unearned income

Investment securities

Fed funds sold cash in banks

Total interest-earning assets

NON-INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Bank premises and fixed assets

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Allowance for loan losses

Total assets

LiABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

NOW accounts

Savings accounts

Money market accounts

Time accounts

Total interest-bearing deposits

OTHER INTEREST-BEARING

LIABILITIES

Borrowed funds

Total interest-bearing liabilities

NON-INTEREST-BEARING

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and

shareholders equity

Net interest income

Interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Average loans excl LHFS
to average deposits

RATE VOE4JME ANALYSES OF NET INTEREST INCOME

In total net income increased in 2012 by $2.5 million from $4.1 million in 2011 to $6.6 million in 2012 as result of the

above factors

DSTRBUTON OF ASSETS UABHiTES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY INTEREST RATES AND

NTEREST DWFERENTAL

The following table presents the average balance sheet of the consolidated Company for the years
ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 Also presented is the consolidated Companys actual interest income and expense from each asset

and liability the average yield of each interest-earning asset and the average cost of each interest-bearing liability This table

includes all major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS

Dollars in thoLisands

320597

109163

25842

455602

18019

2485

65

20569

5.62%

2.28%

0.25%

4.51

$334751 19624

99858 2611

36363 88

470972 22323

5.86%

2.610/

0.24%

4.74%

373779 22379

54978 1989

18202 41

446959 24409

5.99%

3.62%

0.23%

5.46%

10166

8875

1513

23522

6697
492981

50604

62092

54281

183331

350308

7716

9119

1662

20520

7627

40958

60056

453

224842

371167

178

294

249

2282

3003

0.35%

0.47%

0.46%

.24%

0.86%

8226

9476

1657

20019

6158

38473 226

52102 570

24826 309

246359 5232

361760 6337

163

535

333

3648

4679

0.40%

0.89%

0.730/

1.62%

1.26%

22904 679

373212 3682

2.96% 29561 1023

0.99% 400728 5702

3.46% 29190 953

.42% 390950 7290

61933 50463 42066

3400 2647 2202

54436 48524 44961

492981 $502362 $480179

0.59%

.09%

1.24%

2.12

.75%

3.26%

.86%

3.60%

3.83%

16621

3.52

3.71

78 72 7o

3.32%

3.53%

17119

83.40% 81.52%

The following table sets forth information regarding changes in net interest income attributable to changes in average



hr ink ngages ull complement of lending activities including commercial real estate and consumer loans As of

cernhcr 2012 he Ba iks loan portfolio excluding loans held for sale consisted of 7.4% commercial and industnal

loans rca ite conscruction land and land development loans 20.9% real estate residential loans 492c real

est ste immer ians nd consumer loans

Comincicial and dc strial lancing is directed principally towards businesses whose demands for fun is 1sll within the Banks

legal err ing ho its id vhieh are potential deposit customers of the Bank This category of loans mc udes loans macIc to

individual artr rd or ccrporate horrowers for vanety of business purposes These loans include slioit-term lines of

credit hort to ed in term plant and equipment loans and loans for general working capital

heal esta resid ft il loans include residential mortgage lending and are primarily single-family residential oans secured

ide itia wrty tome equity lines are also included in real estate residential loans

7eal esta con rn ial ft ans include commercial mortgage loans that are generally secured by office buildings retail

cs hlishr cuts ad ibe
types

of real
property

both owner occupierl and non-owner occupied significant component of

is type lendi
ig own occupied borrowers including churches

Nc ncr loins ii at prinìarily of installment loans to individuals for personal family or household purposes including

iu mobi Ioan to iclviduals and pre-approved lines of credit

Vb ik nc of loss te nk Ician portfolio is prima ily tied to the credit quality of the various borrowers risk of loss ma
Is inc rcsc due dons hcyond the Banks control such as local regional and/or national economic downturns General

icli ion thn ate market may also impact the relative risk in the Banks real estate portfolio

cv iCh cxcced the Banks lending limits or established credit criteria the Bank may originate such

tc another bank The Bank may also purchase loans originated by other banks Management of th Bank

ts loan purchase participations will necessarily pose any greater risk of loss than loans which the Bank

lo em of Ic sents tie categories of loans contained in the Banks loan portfolio as of the er of the tive most recent

sc al
years

id ie sal amount of all loans for such periods

hal inces and ian in rates fir the periods indicated The effect of change in average balance has been dctermin by

iplyin tic vc rag ste in thc ear icr period to the change in average balance in the later period as compared with the

carl cr nod lhe sn cc of the change in interest income or expense and net interest income has been attributed to

iinge avc rag ra on-accruing loans have been included in the category Net loans and loans held for sale

in rhou.

Increase Decrease Due to

Balance Rate Total Balance Rate Total

Inter 51 Cd ned

1x exen 79 36 41

iNc sc cunsft 156 318 62 1557 969
rl funds cad cash in banks 25 23 42 4/

Nec Ii ans and in he ci fcir sale 830 775 1605 2337 418 2733
Pta in crcit in on 584 $II70 51754 697 $l189 $2086
Ii rest tnnd or

NOW deposit 38 23 IS 13 78 63
Nor markc cI is 66 50 84 255 23

aenig depc sits 15 259 24 57 122 II

lnnc deposits 674 692 1366 457 127 5841

3cr nov ccl funds 230 14 344 12 58 70

iN ntc resc cx er $78 91238 $%Qaq 588 f00 94388
Inc rcse nccreacc ne interest inccme 198 68 $266 609 /498

he anks rc

loans II as

\ug and Sac ni

construction land and land development loans consist of residential and commercial construction

scvelop nent loans These loans are primarily cortstruction and development loans to builders in the

Georgia areas

VitI respen Ito

sans and se then

ocs ncit be leVe
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As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Commercial and industrial 19816 18864 20298 22906 31173

Real estate construction land and

land development 55926 73823 86418 107429 105032

Real estate residential 55495 56563 61194 66050 65958

Real estate commercial 130729 131725 142351 133140 125194

Consumer 3921 4715 6606 7468 9092

Total loans receivable 265887 285690 316867 336993 336449

Less

Unearned income and deferred loan fees 56 76 58 144 56

Allowance for possible loan losses 5954 6804 7866 5072 4284

Total net of allowance 977 278810 308943 331777 332009

In addition to the above the Bank also had $48.4 million and $45.2 million of single family residential mortgage loans held

for sale that were originated by the Banks Mortgage Division at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The table below
presents an analysis of maturities of loans by loan

type as of December 31 2012

Dqein Due After

to Years Years Total

Dollars in thousands

Commercial and industrial 12246 7188 382 19816

Real estateconstruction land and land development 35937 19599 390 55926

Real estate residential 23133 19677 12685 55495

Real estate commercial 30670 46108 5395 130729

Consumer 1123 2737 61 3921

Total loans receivable 113109 95309 67469 265887

The following is presentation of an analysis of sensitivities of loans to changes in interest rates as of December 31 2012 in

thousands

Loans due after one year with predetermined interest rates 33187

Loans due after one year
with floating interest rates 32591

Total loans due after one year $162778

The following table presents information regarding non-accrual and past due loans at the dates indicated

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Loans accounted for on non-accrual basis

Number 35 48 50 63 56

Amount 3895 7734 6257 6190 5061

Accruing loans which are contractually

past due 90 days or more as to principal

and interest payments

Number

Amount

Accrual of interest is discontinued when loan becomes 90 days past
due as to principal and interest or when in managements

judgment the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business Additional interest income of approximately

$121500 in 2012 would have been recorded if all loans accounted for on non-accrual basis had been current in accordance with

their original terms No interest income has been recognized in 2012 on loans that have been accounted for on non-accrual basis

Troubled Debt Restructurings

As of December 31 2012 the Bank had classilied 23 loans totaling $6734000 as troubled debt restructurings as defined in

ASC 310-40 As of December 31 2011 the Bank had classified 20 loans totaling $9770000 as troubled debt restructurings

Included in the troubled debt restructurings was $1.6 million of loans also on non-accrual as of December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011 As of December 31 2012 three loans totaling $1.0 million classified as troubled debt restructurings were

in default As of December 31 2011 three loans totaling $811000 classified as troubled debt restructuring were in default



he ollo ing tat cots cans classified as troubled debt restructurings as defined in ASC 040

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousandc

Fr Jtled deb ctructuring 6734 9770 9250 tOO

lelated to tr uhk as Os esti uctunngs the Bank has utiliaed different types of concessions The Bank may perform note/B

rot ut str ri ss su set of the Banks troubled debt restructuring strategy Under an note/B notc workout structure

ic cw note rwrittn in accordance with customary troubled debt restructuring underwriting standards and is

snab asurr tull repayment while the note is not The note is immediately charged off upon restructuring

itt se ihov oan accruing prior to the troubled debt restructuring documented with the lo sn legally hi Ii ir ated

it mn fu
ly pFortiriy accrual status and note fully contractually forgiven and charged off the note may remain

on crual itt tte san was on nonaccrual prior to the troubled debt restructuring documented with the loan legally

if ircstc irto its Fully supporting
accrual status and note rontractually forgiven and fully char3ed off the note

so slur sed ru sI atus arid risk ratcd accordingly after reasonable period of performance under the trouhls debt

strmtu it tents riionth of payment performance is generally required to return these loans to accrual status

ftc ns te ss ul iut th Os classified as troubled debt restructuring and only may be removed from in paired status in yes

1s the stru tuni the restructuring agreement specifies an interest rate equal to or
gi

eater than the rate that the 3ank

vi hr to ac tthe tine of the restructuring for new loan with comparable risk and the loan is not impaired based

on tic teens
spe

it the restructuring agreement

lbs snk rest ir one loan using this note/B note structure totaling 6690000 and $1.1 millk as of December

and 2C ti ely The Bank had no loans using this structure prior to 2011

Dccc icr there were no loans classified for regulatory purposes as doubtful substandard or special men ion that

is riot im di do above which represent or result from trends or Lincertainties which management reasonably expe ts

dl ii ier DIv it iss rr operating results liquidity or capital resources or ii represent material credits about which

ge as is av re ot any if rmation which causes management to have serious doubts as to the ability of sLich borrowers to

apl/ tt the epaymcnt terms

iollov
ing pr se an analysis of the Banks loss experience for the periods indicated

Yet rs Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousand

\hlow nec or iii osse beginning of yer 6804 7866 5072 4264 5059

dh ire

or sic ndus rUt 98 40 39 208 22

se est its Strut en land

tar lopmeni 692 34 3663 1362 07

Re esti dent at 242 570 980 553 798

esti simerraI 79 319 83t 26

onsurnr 108 lOS 147 tC9 Ito

11 3168 5779 2342 226a
4cc ne

onimcrii nd ndutrial 225 62 63 14

Re est it or struction land

it tar dv borne it 734 20

4cr esta ent vi 43 47 13

Rest est sinsercial 99 22

oiisunir 58 _____ 51 104 29

LO74 379 218 48 33

Ne irgc re ocenes 245 2789 5561 22c4 22 It

605 1727 8355 3082 1456

\lboeanc ai oss end of
year 5954 J104 7866 5QZ2 4jtt4

Rvo 01 rn ge oIls rmoveries dunng

it riot tc icc owis outstanding

di ring tIm pc 0.90o 1.69 0.67o 067d
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

In the normal course of business the Bank has recognized and will continue to recognize losses resulting from the inability of

certain borrowers to repay
loans and the insufficient realizable value of collateral securing such loans

Accordingly management has established an allowance for loan lossestotaling $5954000 at December 31 2012 which is

allocated according to the following table along with the percentage of loans in each category to total loans

December 31 2012 December 31 2011 December 31 2010 December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Commercial

and industrial 225 6.4% 259 6.8% 436 9.3%

Real estate

construction

land and land

development 2870 21.00 3219 25.8 3908 27.3 2364 31.9 1.838

Real estate

residential 794 20.9c 1141 19.8 1070 19.3c 827 19.6c 622 19.6

Real estate

commercial 1872 49.2 1706 46.1 1617 44.9% 1319 3950 1147 37.2o

Consumer 77 1.5 108 1.7% 251 2.10o 176 2.2 133 2.7
Unallocated 116 -- 445 -- 793 -- 127 -- 108

Total $5954 $6804 $7866 $5072 $4284

In evaluating the Banks allowance for loan losses management takes into consideration concentrations within the loan

portfolio past loan loss experience growth of the portfolio current economic conditions and the appraised value of

collateral securing loans Although management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate managements evaluation

of losses is continuing process
which may necessitate adjustments to the allowance in future periods

Commercial and industrial loans represented approximately 7.4% of outstanding loans at December 31 2012 Commercial

loans are generally considered by management as having greater
risk than other categories of loans in the Banks loan

portfolio However the Bank generally originates commercial loans on secured basis Management believes thai the

secured status of substantial portion of the commercial loan portfolio greatly reduces the risk of loss inherently present in

commercial loans

Real estate construction land and land development loans represented approximately 21.0c of the Banks outstanding

loans at December 31 2012 This
category

of the loan portfolio consists of commercial and residential construction and

development loans located in the Banks market areas Management of the Bank closely monitors the performance of these

loans and periodically inspects properties and development progress Management considers these factors in estimating
and

evaluating the allowance for loan losses

Real estate residential loans constituted approximately 20.9% of outstanding loans at December 31 2012 Residential

mortgages are generally secured by the underlying residence Management of the Bank currently believes that these loans are

adequately secured

Real estate commercial loans were approximately 49.2% of outstanding loans at December 31 2012 Management
believes ihe risk of loss for commercial real estate loans is generally higher than residential loans Management continuously

monitors the performance of the commercial real estate portfolio and collateral values

Consumer loans represented approximately .5% of outstanding loans at December 31 2012 and are also well secured The

majority of the Banks consumer loans are secured by collateral primarily consisting of automobiles boats and other personal

property Management believes that these loans inherently possess less risk than other categories of loans

Loans held for sale consist of single family residential mortgage loans originated by the Banks Mortgage Division These loans

are originated with an investor purchase commitment and are sold shortly after origination by the Bank

The Banks management and Board of Directors monitor the loan portfolio monthly to evaluate the adequacy of the

allowance for loan losses Ratings on classified loans are also reviewed and performance is evaluated in determining the

allowance The provision for loan losses charged to operations is based on this analysis In addition management and

the Board consider such factors as delinquent loans collateral values and economic conditions in their evaluation of the

adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

DoIIar in thousands

7.4% 185 6.6 227
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S1 vt lE LOANS PREVIOUSLY SOLD

tosses or mortg ar previously sold are recorded when the Bank nclemn4ies or repurchases mortgage loans previously

fd he rep esr and warranties in our loan sale agreements prov de that we repue hase or indemnify the inves ors

for sses or costs ins we sell under certain limited conditions Some of these conditions Inc ude underwriting errors or

ions rood oaterial misstatements by the borrower in the loan application or invalid market value on the collateral

roperts fur to de inc es in the appraisal In addition to these representations and warranties our loan sale contra tS

ehnc oriditi vlr ch the borrower defaults during short period of time typically 120 days to one year as an Larly

sroert ult In thi event of an EPD we are required to return the premium paid by the investor for the loan

II certai ar ninistrative fees and in some cases repurchase the lean or indemnify the investor The Bank iricrirr

osrs 51 6/ 000 $30 3000 for indemnification and repurchase for he
years

ended 31 2012 and 2011

espcctrvely

fourth uartcr 2011 Tt se Company established recourse liability for mortgage oans sold for losses of this type The

olk wi sg table arT stratea the activity for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Recourse LiabHity for Mortgage Loaiis Sod Activity

Dollars in thciusands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

cginning
balance 245

ovisori 499 500

ssas 167 305
rosen a5 t5 50

srfrng balance 772

BANKS

ash Oar 15 is in the process of collection and amounts due fom correspondent banks and the Federal Reserve

an ar inc fudc ash and Due from Banks As of December 2012 and 201 cash and due from banks totaled

39 rnillir aid mi lion respecti\/ely Interest-hearing rash en deposit with correspondent banks totaled $4.8 million

as of Dec en 12 compared to $1 .7 million as of December 31 2011 Interest-bearing cash on deposit in the Federal

erve Bank cx lance find was $14.5 million as of December31 2012 compared to $23 nnllion as of December

er uìds required to be on reserve with the Federal Reserve Bank totaled $3.8 millio rand $914000 as of

ember sod 201 respectively

NVLS 5411
\s of ecrmber 12 ivestment securities comprised approximately 26.6% of the Banks assets The Bank invests

prrnr snify in obliga is or agencies of the United States mortgage-backed securities and obligations certain obligations of

ats and monk pslties corporate securities and Federal Home Loan Bank stock The Bank also enters into federal funds

at sac us witS it ii ipa correspondent banks The Bank may act as net seller or net purchaser of such fLinds

lhe toll wir tabk resents for the dates indicated the estimated fair market value of the Banks investment securities

vsilahlc for sale Ifs snk has classified all of its investment securities as available for sale

As of December 31

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

gov rnment and agencies 55365 31069

rVontgage-badsed securities 51295 34351

State and riunicipal 22788 14863

porate
londs 3112

iI investment securities 132760 00283

Fcdena Home Loan I3ank stock 1863 2070

Sc rat irvestmcnt securities and FHLB srock 334625 5102353
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The following tables present the contractual maturities and weighted average yields of the Banks investment securities as of

December 31 2012

Maturities of Investment Securities

Less Than One To Five To Over

One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years

Dollars in thousands

U.S government and agencies 9569 8223 12553 23221

Mortgage-hacked securities 40982 8244 2069

State and municipal 397 4181 16007 2202

Corporate bonds 992 2120 _______
Total 9966 34378 38924 29492

Weighted Average Yields

Less Than One To Five To Over

One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years

U.S
government

and agencies 2.54T 2.O1 .86% .86c

Mortgage-backed securities 2.28 .50% 2.83
State and municipal 4.16o 3.S1 3.05% 3.73o

Corporate bond 2.00 .01
Total 2.60c 2.33% 2.34c 2.07

The weighted average yields on tax-exempt obligations presented in the table above have been computed on tax-equivalent basis

Increased liquidity has resulted in significant increases in investment securities resLilting in
greater occurrence of issuer

concentrations The table below reflects investments with issuers having book value which exceeds 1000 of the Companys

shareholders equity as of December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value

Dollars in thousands

Freddie Mac

U.S agency securities 3000 3006 7893 7944

Mortgage-backed securities 7317 7693 7340 7608

Ginnie Mae

Mortgage-backed securities 9020 19439 5533 16034

Fannie Mae
U.S

agency
securities 9243 9217 2000 2004

Mortgage-backed securities 23468 24164 28287 28911

Small Business Association

U.S agency securities 30261 30482 21140 21.121

Total 92509 94001 82193 842

In addition to investment securities an $8.0 million bank-owned life insurance policy BOLl was acquired in 2007 in order

to insure the key officers of the Bank This policy is recorded at its cash surrender value net of surrender charges and/or early

termination charges As of December 31 2012 the BOLl cash surrender value was $1 0.0 million resulting in other income

for 2012 of $392000 and an annualized net yield of 4.01

DEPOSTS

The Bank offers wide range of commercial and consumer interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposit accounts

including checking accounts savings accounts money market accounts negotiable order of withdrawal NOW accounts

individual retirement accounts and certificates of deposit The sources of deposits are residents businesses and employees of

businesses within the Banks market area obtained through the personal solicitation of the Banks officers and directors direct

mail solicitation and advertisements published in the local media Although de-emphasized in 2011 and 2012 the Bank has

also utilized the brokered certificate of deposit market and the CDARS program for funding needs for loan origination and

liquidity These brokered and CDARS deposits are included in time deposits on the balance sheet The Bank pays competitive

interest rates on time and savings deposits In addition the Bank has implemented service charge fee schedule competitive

with other financial institutions in the Banks market area covering such matters as maintenance fees on checking accounts

per item processing fees on checking accounts returned check charges and similar items

15



epos ategc ro

Non interes be nie md deposits

NOo\ snd more mark deposts

TN Bank borrow

urchat agieme
00 ft urd

he nest sign fit itt

conosting of the

tO tfl Wo long

tree months or less

Oser three months through six months

Osor months through twelve months

Over twe ye months

lot

December 31 2012

Dollars in thousands

29699

34748

31621

71308

169376

urds consist of short-term borrowings arid long-term debt including federal funds purchased retail

and lines of redit with the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank The average balance

prexinately $22.9 million and $29.6 million for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

wed funds categories for the Bank are the lines of credit from the Federal Home Loa Bank

Held for Sale program short-term 1-4 family and commercial real estate ba is line of credit 1-4

ml convertible advances

1\t Decem er 31 ft 12 usd 20 there was no outstanding balance on the LHFS line of credit The LI IFS line of ered wa

rot use 2012 or OIl The interest rate on the LHFS line of credit is equal to the Federal Home Loan Banks Daily ate

reel Progr sin tt to bssis points

he oi st ne np alt

LO1 it 0Fr
tOt 100 The

70 ft ft avei

17 If inaxi Ti

35 .mrkon in 201

an ext lot ing

to is Fm eral

Our ng200 op
.u st inding balcne

ai of rr Septemb

Dcc umbe

Ihis advin

ic on the short-term 1-4 LOC was $25.0 million at December 31 2012 $0.0 rtillion at December 31

oiage balance outstanding os the 1-4 LOC was $1 million for 2012 with weighted average interct

ge balance outstanding on the 1-4 LOC was $14000 for 2011 with weighted average interest rate

lacer outstanding on the 1-4 LOC was $244000 for 2010 with weighted avei age iterest rate of

amount outstanding on the 1-4 LOC at any month end during 2012 was $25.0 million compared to

rid $7 million in 2010 This 1-4 LOC is sectired by the Banks portfolio of 1-4 family first mortgage

loans that are held for sale and commercial real estate loans The interest rate on the FOC is equal

san Banks Daily Rate Credit Program

cnn convertible advance was established as an additional line of credit At December 312011 the

is this advance was $100 million with weighted average interest rate of 83% This advane WIS

2012 An additional but similar long-term convertible advance was also established during 2008 At

he ou standing balance on this advance was $15.0 million with weighted average interest rate of

vms paid off in September2012

RN ND ASSETS

1% tur \ver ig etc

Prtuin Avera urty

id Pavou tk

tquny toAssctc Pa

2012

14%

l2.l6

52/

113%

December 31

20111

0.82/

.43
0.000

10.23

The following task tails for the indicated periods the average amount of and average rate paid on each of the following

deposit itegories

he maturitic cc

cerc as ollows

61933 0.00% 50463 000% 42066 0.00

104885 0.41% 86269 0.57o 63299 0.83
Sviito deosits 62092 0.47% 60036 0.89% 52102 l09
ion deposits 183331 1.24% 224842 .62c 246339 2.1

fic stes of deposit arid individual retirement account of $100000 or more as of December 31 2012

hi fo lowing ank es nts cc tam profitability return and capital ratios for the Company for or as tht end ot the
past

tlir fic sears

2010

0.12
l1T

t.O0
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UQUIDITY AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Deposit levels and the associated timing and quantity of funds flowing into and out of bank inherently involve degree of

uncertainty In order to ensure that it is capable of meeting depositors demands for funds the Bank must maintain adequate

liquidity Liquid assets consisting primarily of cash and deposits due from other banks federal funds sold funds held in Federal

Reserve Bank excess balance account and investment securities maturing within one year provide the source of such funds

Insufficient
liquidity may force bank to engage in emergency measures to secure necessary funding which could be costly and

negatively affect earnings The Bank monitors its liquidity on monthly basis and seeks to maintain it at an optimal level

As of December 31 2012 the Banks liquidity ratio was 42.4% as compared to 34.9% at December 31 2011 In addition to

the liquid assets described above the Bank has reserve funding source in the form of federal funds lines of credit with First

National Bankers Bank and SunTrust Bank Management is not aware of any demands commitments or uncertainties which

could materially affect the Banks liquidity position However should an unforeseen demand for funds arise the Bank held

readily marketable investment securities at December 31 2012 with total market value of $1 32.8 million in its available-for-

sale portfolio and $1 .9 million in Federal Home Loan Bank stock which would provide an additional source of liquidity

Gap management is conservative asset/liability strategy designed to maximize earnings over complete interest rate cycle

while reducing or minimizing the Banks exposure to interest rate risk Various assets and liabilities are termed rate sensitive

when the interest rate can be replaced By definition the gap is the difference between rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive

liabilities in given time horizon At December 31 2012 the Bank was liability sensitive in the 0-3 month and 3-12 month time

frames but asset sensitive in the -5 years and years or more time frames

The following is an analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities as of December 31 2012 in thousands

More than

mos 312 mos years years Total

Dollars in thousands

Rate Sensitive Assets

Taxable securities 1004 8566 51290 56672 7532

Tax-exempt cecurities 397 3088 11744 5229

Federal funds sold and cash in banks 23710 23710
Loans 92721 55447 96985 69166 314319

Total rate sensitive assets 117435 64410 51363 137582 470790

Rate Sensitive Liabilities

NOW and money market deposits 112464 112464

Savings deposits 64236 64236

Timedeposits 29699 66369 72173 1135 69376

Total rate sensitive deposits 206399 66369 72173 1135 146076

Borrowed funds 28 25000 25028

Total rate sensitive liabilities 206427 91369 72173 1135 371104

Fxcess of rate sensitive assets less rate

sensitive liabilities 88992 26959 791 90 136447 99686

Cumulative gap j992 51 15951 661 99686

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The equity capital of the Bank totaled $55.4 million at December 31 2012 an increase of $5.6 million or 11 .2% from

equity capital of $49.8 million at December 31 2011 The increase in equity capital was attributable to the Banks net

income of $6.8 million partially offset by dividends paid to the Company of $1 .5 million and an increase of $0.3 million in

the Banks after-tax unrealized gain/loss on available-for-sale securities which is recognized in the available-for-sale portion

of the bond portfolio by making adjustments to the equity capital account The consolidated equity capital of the Company

totaled $56.3 million at December 31 2012 compared to $50.4 million at December 31 2011
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is Hofling taf le is orth thc apphcable actual and required capital ratios for the Company and the Rank as of

Cc ember 201

Bans ecember31 2012 Minimum Regulatory Requirement

risk ace ipit
8io 6.59% 8.00%

Capital atm 5.34 400%

ev aye ci 11.13% 4.00%

irpany

ta risk aced stir 16.86% 8.00%

icr ape il ratio 35.61 4.00%

Levmage io II .32% 40000

ie hovc ratio idi aN that Mc capital position
of the Company and the Bank are sound and that the Company is well

OS mcd Mi fu us rowth There are no commitments of capital resources known to management which would have

flats na rn set th Banks Ipital position

ir ilue neisu itt for assets and liabilities where there exists limited or no observable market data and thcretore

me iurernen primarily upon estimares are often calculated based on the economic and competitive environment

the characte otis ir asset or liability and other factors Therefore the results cannot be determined with precision and may
red zec ir ctual sale or immediate settlement of the asset or liability Additionally there ma he inherent weakness

in Icul mtio iioue and changes in the underlying assumptions used including discount rates and estimates of futuic

lows ould
Si1

1l icantly affect the results of current or future values Additional information regarding the Companys faii

calue mc isurern ut assets ansI liabilities can he found in Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements

Marl ski the inising om adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to charge in interest rates

xch niyc rates and equity prices Our primary market risk is interest rate risk

he Prim ry bjectivs- of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable stability in net

inter irconue if rc Ii ut ite est rate cycles This is achieved by mainta ning the proper balance of ate sensitive earning

it seN an na sen abilities The relationship that compares rate sensitive earning assets to rate sensitive liabilities is the

ip lac or iii ting the effect that fluctuating interest rates will have on future net interest irn ome Rate sensitive

am ng amets ar eN bearing liabilities are those that can be re-priced to current market rates withn relatively sI ort

in pert Mana ac it mo iitors the rate sensitivity of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities over the entire life of

cc instrument ir rde to mdnage this risk

We iave iM mm ccc high
level of volatility in net interest income primarily because of the relatively large base of

core deposits th not price on contractual basis These deposit prods cts include regular savings interest-hearing

tansactioi iccount mcney market savings accounts Balances for these accounts are reported based on historical

re-i rue ny lowev 5e ratcs paid are typically not directly related to market interest rates since nariagement has some

scm ton adjus these rates as market rates change

BtAN RANJEMENTS

ii the orlu ry icr lbuoiness the Bank may enter into off-balance sheet financial instruments whic are not reflected in

bo flia icual late is hee instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of redit Such financial

in sir merts me mec led in the financial statements when funds are disbuoed or the instruments become payable

Fulls wu ig is an na ot sig
iificant off-balance sheet financial instruments

December 31

2012 2011

Dollars in thou sands

imrn ter extend reciit 48976 46923

St snd Is ire credit ........1LPT

54005 52211
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CONTRACTUAL OBUGATONS

We have various contractual obligations that we must fund as part of our normal operations The following table shows

aggregate
information about our contractual obligations including interest and the periods in which payments are due The

amounts and time periods are measured from December 31 2012 based upon rates in effect at December 31 2012

layments Due by Period

Dollars in thousands

Less than

year

Time Deposits 169376 96068 59840 12332 1136

Short-Term Debt 25028 25028
Data Processing Obligations 2377 931 1437

Operating Lease Obligations 318 214 82 22

Service Contract Obligations 459 243 192 24

Total $197558 122484 6151 12387 1136

CHANGE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

On March 16 2012 the Company dismissed Cherry Bekaert Holland L.L.P CBH as its principal independent registered public

accounting firm The decision to dismiss CBH was approved by the Companys Audit Committee

In each of the Companys past two fiscal years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 CBHs report on the consolidated

financial statements of the Company did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as

to uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles

In each of the Companys past two fiscal years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 and through March 16 2012

there were no disagreements as that term is defined in Item 304aliv and the related instructions of Regulation 5.1K promulgated

by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended with CBH on any matter

of accounting principles or practices financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure which disagreements if not

resolved to the satisfaction of CBH would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreements in connection

with its report on the Companys financial statements

In each of the Companys past two fiscal
years

ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 and through March 16 2012

there were no reportable events as that term is defined in Item 304alv of Regulation S-K that were reported by CI3FI to the

Company

On March 16 2012 the Companys Audit Committee approved the selection of Crowe Horwath L.L.P as its principal independent

registered public accounting firm to audit the Companys financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31 2012 and

authorized management to move forward with such engagement

On March 26 2012 the Company engaged Crowe Horwath as its principal independent registered public accounting firm to audit the

Companys financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31 2012

During the Companys past two fiscal years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 and through March 16 2012 neither

the Company nor anyone acting on its behalf consulted with Crowe Horwath regarding either the application of accounting

principles to specified transaction either completed or proposed1 or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the

Companys financial statements and no written report or oral advice was provided to the Company that Crowc Horwath concluded

was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching decision as to any accounting auditing or financial reporting

issue1 or ii any matter that was either the subject of disagreement as described in Item 304aliv and the related instructions of

Regulation S-K or reportable event as that term is defined in Item 304alv of Regulation S-K
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Crowe Horvvath0

Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath InternatonaI

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc

Augusta Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares lnc.as

of December 31 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income shareholders equity

and cash flows for the
year

then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to

perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal control over

financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we

express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of the Company as of December 31 2012 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Atlanta Georgia

March 20 2013



CherryBekaert

RikR DF IND ENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

be Board of Dire or

Orfia hna ires Inc

Augusta orgi

We ave idited he ompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares lnc md

as liary th ip ny as of December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive

in ome mn fes reholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended The Companys management is responsible

for se cc us Ia riranc al statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our au it

VVe condu our cdi ai cordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board nited

ats Tb standar Nquire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consol da finar statc ments are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

gagM to cerforn audit of ts intrnal contro over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal

con er finan eporting as basis tor designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances hut not

mc pa of cx essirg ai opinion on the effectiseness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Accor ng sve cx no sucf opinion An audit includes examining os test basis evidence supporting the amoents

ai Incloures in 0i solidated financial statements assessing
the accounting principles used and significa it estimates

made by ar agc ment as well is evaluating the overall conso idated financial statement presentation
We believe that our

aud provide re sc mable basis for our opinion

In our 0111 100 tf sc lidatecl financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

stioi tie Ci arolina Bancshares Inc and subsidiary as of December 31 2011 and the results of their operations

arid as flos the
ycar

then ended in conformity with accountin3 principles generally accepted in the United States

of Armc nc

gu ta Ceorgia

March20 1012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

ASSETS

2012 2011

Cash and due from banks 30279 34902

Securities available-for-sale 32760 100281

Loans 265831 285614

Allowance for loan losses

Loans net 259877 278810

Loans held for sale at fair value for 2012 48432 45227

Bank-owned life insurance 10001 9609
Bank premises and equipment net 8790 8979
Accrued interest receivable 1772 1732

Other real estate owned net 5876 6990
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1865 2070
Other assets 6523 4650

Total assets $506175 $493252

LIABILITtES AND SHAREHOLDERS QUtTY
Liabilities

Deposits

Non-interest bearing 70880 52735

Interest-bearing

NOW accounts 57482 44646

Savings 64236 63210

Money market accounts 54982 52981

Time deposits of $1 00000 or more 111537 134655

Other time deposits 57839 63168

Total deposits 416956 411393

Short-term debt 25028

Long-term debt 25000

Repurchase agreements 3333 3565
Other liabilities 4533 2847

Total liabilities 449850 442807

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock par
value $001 1000000 shares

authorized none issued

Common stock par value $001 9000000 shares authorized 3528296
and 3592140 shares issued and outstanding respectively

Additional paid-in capital 15687 16301

Retained earnings 39177 32988
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1457 1152

Total shareholders equity 56325 50445

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $50175 $493252

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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NS ST NTS RAT ONS
For th Ye rs Ended December 2012 and 2011

Do/I irs in thou nds except per ire amounts

tres nd in nan 18019 9624

lnte on ecunti 2046 2208

cm on sOc securitie 439

Oth er mc 65 88

Tstsl itecs 20569 22321

hit pe

Ink in on tim ex sits of 00000 or more 1600 2321

tire on th lcposit 1403 36

res on md urchared and other borrowings
679 102

lotal mntcr st er se 3682 5702

Ne interns ic or 16887 1662

Provhio for loan osses 605 1727

Net interest after provision for loan losses 7492 14894

Nononterest sour

Srviou ch repod 1524 1531

Mr
rtg sge irking sctivit ins 11376 8185

loss 15cc unties 105 58

her 1858

0111 non income 14653 70

Nonintrest expe Ise

Sal it ant TI cc neSts 12329 11881

cup in exp 1505 1556 54
Other cal estar wncd exgenses 2284 1084

OtO 6692 _H
tal nt st expense

22861 2Q127

Income before nm mc taxes 9284 3917

ncorse tax exproe 2663 1838

Net mcome 6621 4Q99

Earnrngs per iimon share

Basic L84 115

Dduted L84 115

ftvidends per umm share 0D2 OMO

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31 2112 and 2011

Dollars iii thousands

2Q12 2011

Nut ncome 6621 4099

3m ic rnpnhr JO si

realized oi/
rig gain sri sing during the period 350 1451

max eftect fur eal /ed nolding gain 114 327

Rr insIde stir br gail loss included in net income 105 38

ax e/Iot ot loss icc led in net income 36
km assificat ott or 3heethar temporary impairment 0111 included in net income 38

Ja ef net

Io lo her rchensive mriconse 305 916

omprehcn ncorie 6926 5Oi5

Sec tm to Ii ed inancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
For theYears Ended December31 2012 and 2011

Dollais in thousands

Accumulated

Common Common Additional Other Total

Stock Stock Paid in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders

Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Income Loss Equity

3536715 $15847 528889 236 $44976

4099 4099
916 916

22585 78 78

Balance at January 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Stock-based compensation expense

Issuance of stock for compensation

Balance at December 31 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Stock-based compensation expense

Issuance of restricted stock

for compensation

Issuance of stock for directors tees

Repurchase of common shares

Dividends

Balance at December 31 2012

532988 1152

305

209

1219
432 432

3528296 15687 $39177 1457 56325

See notes to consolidated financial statements

32800

3592101

45491

15988

24504

149787

108

268

$16301

253

108

35

209

1219

6621

108

268

50445

6621

305

253

108

35

25



GEcGJdAR9JNA
071 viesr iw

snts ncile income to net cash provided by

iv u.s

tic

rovision

rovisi iF loi

Dais oi

Cain loss

un ft ci

tortgaisc

rc ceds fr

rigina

ncrsr

Sior Is base

SOs com
erred ir

crase

Increase cc

rasii

meni sse dii

Net cash in

md amarti ation

ias loscs

ithi real estate owned

other real estate owned

sale of equipment

sale of securities

king ac ivit es

sale loans held for sale

ii is held or sale

sh salue of banDowned life insurance

sspenr ation expense

ation

mu tax benetit expense

ued interest receivable

rease in other assets

in accrued interest payable

iae in other liabilities

vided by operating activities

Cash Hows from mvesting c0vtes

ii originauon and collections net

Cr ha es sble4o cale securities

ro eeds fro ii ii iturities and calls of availahie-foosale securities

Or0 eeds ron es arailable-for-sale securities

No ce Is fro ol FH1 stock

7ric ecds sri if other real estate owned

Nc ad litioris ia ik
premises

and equipment

Net cah we ed by used in investing activities

Cash 9ow bore rnCng aLGCtes

In rca dec ra de os ts

ftepayrnent 13 adean es

rc eeds fri ii III advaricis and other borrowings

Di rca in rc ase greements

Nor eeds fri options exercised

Pun ha or

ash oividerids iN

cah vided Es sed in financing activities

Nc tin re crease in cash and due Irorn banks

622

605

1434

40

105

1376

438048

429877

392
108

244

5561

25000
25028

232
253

1219
432

3959 6813

4623 3206

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands

6621 4099

615
40

1513
215

1901

4405

4352

76053
29602

4324
205

4906
323

12987

-2

I72

132

20
8185

391947

382419

399
108

268

321

52

527
120

7421

21517

66810
35818

9064
45

2782

240
2588

i3354

3327
78

Cash and due rorn banks at begnnng of the
year 34902 31696

ash sod due Iron banks at end of the
year 30279 34902

Se te to ron lated nancial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOIJ DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December31 2012 and 2011

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLiCIES

Nature of business

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc the Company is one-bank holding company Substantially all of its business is

conducted by its wholly-owned subsidiary First Bank of Georgia the Bank The Bank is engaged in community banking

activities through its locations in Thomson and Augusta Georgia and the surrounding area Most of the Banks loans and

loan commitments have been made to customers in the Columbia Richmond and McDuffie County Georgia areas Many
of the Banks loan customers are also depositors of the Bank The Bank has established mortgage division that operates as

First Bank Mortgage This division currently has offices in Augusta and Savannah Georgia The division originates residential

real estate mortgage loans and provides financing to residential construction and development companies Substantially all

residential mortgage loans originated by the division are sold in the secondary market

The Bank is subject to the regulations of federal and state banking agencies and is periodically examined by them

Significant accounting poficies

Basis of presentation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank Significant

intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation The accounting and
reporting policies of the

Bank conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the

banking industry

Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets dnd liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for losses

on loans including valuation allowances for impaired loans the valuation of other real estate acquired in connection with

foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans recourse liability on mortgage loans previously sold and the fair value of mortgage

loans held for sale and the fair value of the interest rate lock and forward commitment derivatives In connection with the

determination of the allowances for losses on loans and loss estimates on other real estate owned management obtains

independent appraisals for significant properties Management must also make estimates in determining the estimated useful

lives and methods for depreciating premises and equipment

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and other real estate owned future additions to

the allowances may be
necessary

based on changes in local economic conditions In addition regulatory agencies as an

integral part of their examination process periodically review the Companys allowances for losses on loans and valuations

of other real estate owned Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additional losses based on their judgments

about information available to them at the time of their examinations Because of these factors it is reasonably possible that

the allowances for losses on loans and loss estimates for other real estate owned may change materially in the near term

Significant concentrations of credit risk substantial portion of the Banks loan portfolio is with customers in the Thomson

and ALigusta Georgia market areas The ultimate collectability of substantial
portion

of the portfolio is therefore susceptible

to changes in the economic and market conditions in and around these areas

Cash and due from banks For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and due from banks includes cash on hand and

interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing amounts due from banks including cash items in the process of clearing The Bank

maintains due from accounts with banks primarily located in Georgia and Louisiana Balances generally exceed insured

amounts

Investment securities The Banks investments in securities are classified and accounted for as follows

Securities available-for-sale Securities classified as available-for-sale are identified when acquired as being available-for

sale to meet liquidity needs or other purposes They are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses net of taxes

reported in other comprehensive income
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NOTES ID CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December31 2012 and 2011

WV 01 SCNFKNTACC0UNUNG F0UCES CONUNUED
ie Bank iot bed any securities as held-to-matunty or trading

PC iha gains an or on sale of securities are determined using the specific-identification method on rade date

bsis Eivi ends aid terost income are recognized when caned The amortization of premiums and ac retior of discounts

ac xcogniz in nte st incorn using methods approximating the interest method over the LIe ot the securities

Mmagernent eva1uatw securities for other-than-temporary impairment 0111 on at least quarterly has and more

frequent eu nc or arket conditions warrant such an evaluation For securities an unrealized loss position

ia nagem nt consid th extent and duration of the unrealized loss and he financial co idition and near-term prospects

of the issu Man cit also assesses whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required to

cc realizeo luss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis If either of the criteria regarding

ilei or requireiner
sell is net the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment

rough rnings
debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria the amount of impairment is split into two

eompinerls folft 10111 related to credit loss which must be recognized in the income statemen and other-than

tei ipora impair icnt 0111 ielatcd to other factors which is recognized other comprehensive income The credit loss is

defira the diff rei hetvicen the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis

For
qe ny sec irities entire amount impairment is recognized through earnings

sin nd tfltelOt inc Lor ns arc stated at principal amounts outstanding less unearned income deferred fees and costs

and the all wanc ro ian losses Interest income on loans is credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding

II respective rate it terest xcept for unearned interest on discounted loans that is recognized as income over the terni

ol lose using me hod that approximates level yield

nan origni
iton tee set of certain direct origination costs are deferred arid recognized as an adjustment of the related loan

eld civer he lIe tt loan loan origination fees and direct loan originalion costs on loans held for sale are deferred and

og iiiec at the tine the loan is sold

rei il of interest ir me is discontinued for all classes of loans when Ician becomes 90 clays past
due as to principal and

ii cst when in nr gement judgment the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business Accrual

of inleres en sucl is is rewhen in managements judgment he collection of interest and principal becomes

ibbIe When ft placed on non-accrual status all interest previously accrued but not collected reversed against

re terx iw interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are receised

TIe ac rc of intere on impaired loans is discontinued when in managements judgment the borrower may be unable to

mee ayri ents as Ou Inpairine it on loans is measured using either the discounted expected cash flow method or value

collate il eth loan impaired when based on current informaticn and events it is probable that the Bank II be

ur able to oIl ct al ounts when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Impairments on loans are

charg he allowa cc for loan losses

Wanaie it the Ic valua es the borrowers ability to pay the value of any collateral and other factors in cleterniining

when ft is irnpaire Management does not consider loan to be impaired during period of delay payment if it is

exp ted that the will illcct all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractLial interest rate for the period of

h- IC lay \r ioar issitied ia troubled debt restructuring is considered impaired

lnerest payments red loans are applied to the remainng principal balance until the balance is fully recovered Once

pr ncipa is recovered ish payments received are recorded as recoveries to the extent of any principal previously charged

ot an then as inter come

Alk wan fo loan ses lhe lowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses Loan

ssee are rged nst the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed

bsequerit coserk it any ar credited to the allowance Management estimates the allowance balance reqLiired using

51 oari ss exp cc the nature and volume of the portfolio information about specific borrower situations and

timated emllater is iics eloromic conditions and other factors Allocations of the allowance maybe made foi specific

ft ans but the entir owance is avilahIe for any loan that in managements judgment should be charged off
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 2011

NOTE SUMMARY OF SGNWCANT ACCOUNTING POLICES CONTiNUED
The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are individually

classified as impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to

collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Loans for which the terms have been

modified resulting in concession and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties are considered troubled

debt
restructurings and classified as impaired

Factors considered by management in determining impaired loans include payment status collateral value and the

probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment

delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment

delays and payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan

and the borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the

amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed

All loans included on the management watch list are individually evaluated for impairment If loan has an impairment

portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported net at the present value of estimated future cash flows

using the loans
existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral Large groups

of smaller balance homogeneous loans such as consumer and residential real estate loans are collectively evaluated for

impairment and accordingly they are not separately identified for impairment disclosures

Troubled debt
restructurings are separately identified for impairment disclosures and are measured at the present value of

estimated future cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception If troubled debt
restructuring is considered to be

collateral dependent loan the loan is reported net at the fair value of the collateral For troubled debt restructurings that

subsequently default the Company determines the amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the

allowance for loan losses

The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors The

Company considers the actual loss history experience over the last four
quarters one year two year and three

year periods

by portfolio segment to determine the historical loss experience used in the general component This actual loss experience
is supplemented with other economic factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment These economic factors

include consideration of the following levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans levels of and trends in

charge-offs and recoveries for the most recent three years trends in volume and terms of loans effects of any changes in

risk selection and underwriting standards other changes in lending policies procedures and practices experience ability
and depth of

lending management and other relevant staff national and local economic trends and conditions industry

conditions and effects of changes in credit concentrations

For further discussion of
portfolio segments and associated risks and grades please see Note to the consolidated financial

statements

Loans held for sale Prior to July 2012 mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market were carried at

the lower of
aggregate cost or fair value as determined by outstanding commitments from investors Net unrealized losses if any

are recorded as valuation allowance and charged to earnings Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights

released Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value

of the related loan sold Loans held for sale for which the fair value option has been elected
starting July 2012 are recorded at

fair value as of each balance sheet date The fair value includes the servicing value of the loans as well as any accrued interest

Interest rate risk is minimal as rates on loans originated and intended for sale are locked with the investor and the loans are held

in the portfolio only temporarily until funding from the investor is completed The Bank also manages credit risk by having loans

greater than $650000 approved by the secondary market investors while all other loans are approved internally

Loans sold under the Companys mortgage loans held for sale portfolio contain certain representations and warranties in our

loan sale agreements which
provide that we repurchase or indemnify the investors for losses or costs on loans we sell under

certain limited conditions Any losses related to loans previously sold are charged against the Companys recourse liability for

mortgage loans previously sold The recourse liability is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current information

and events when it is probable that loss will be incurred
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NOTES TO CON SOEJDATEE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 2011

\1V SWNHCANTA COUNTNG POUDES CON1INUED

ow wd flSL cQjJ In order to insure the lives of its key officers the Bank has acquired hankowned life

us ii ince policy 11 is eccrdc at its cash surrender value net of surrender charges and/or early Fermi ration charges
that

robahe atsettlcri The increase in cash value is recorded as other income

ses mmnL md is carried at cost Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

Ic mr at luildir and relatd components are depreciated using
the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from

five to thirty-nine yea FLrni ure fixtures and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method with useful lives

rarrgr rg frc ri three to een ycars

Othered ctwrd Other real estate owned represents properties acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings

Ce prperty neld ic sa and is initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of forec osure

esta 3rshrr iew cos isis Subsequent to foreclosure va uations are performed by management and the assets are carried

at ftc lowc ca mount or fair value less estimated selling costs Expenses to maintain such assets md subsequent

changes va iat is are included in other noninterest expenses while gains and losses on disposal ire included in

no rite est inc omc

at eOI1om LCIr NQtiK Federal Home Loan Bank Stock consists of the cost of the Companys nvestme it in the stock

Federal Ho ic an Bank The stock has no quoted market valLie and no ready market exists Investment in the Federal

mrc oa bank is or drtion of borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank and the stock is pledged to collateralize

horro vu
gs ar errodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery

of
par

value Disidends received on

ths to are mdcc in other non-interest income

MtIage hnjcm va Loan commitments whose underlying mortgage loans at origination
will be held for sale upo

lundi ig of the ba dsrivatrve instruments Loan commitments are recognized on the consolidated statement of financial

co irtion ii ithe sc ts and other liabilities at fair value with changes in their fair values recognzed in mortgage banking

ado rtmes \t the icc ic of loan commitment the Bank generally will simultaneously enter into best efforts forward

ci ile om imit ncr to protect
the Bank from losses on sales of the loans underlying the loan commitment by securing the

ul im ito Ic mice ii delivery date of the loan

Lca cnnrritients andied financial instrumenti In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off

ialancc sF eet fin ne rr struments consisting of commitments to extend credit commercial letters of credit and standby

Ic For of edic 3cc cncb rrstruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they become piyahle

hiiriehxes Provo is for income taxes are based on amounts reported in the statements of income after exclusion of

rionCxalc ir oms ch as interest on state and municipal securities and include deferred taxes on temporary differences in

the ecogn rtror of rim and expense for tax and financial statement purposes Deferred taxes are computed on the ability

method Deferr tax assets re educed by valuation allowance when in the opinion of managemeit it is more like than

that sc porte
all of he deferred tax assets will not be realized tax position is recognized as benefit only if it ms

more Ii cc by man not that the tax position
would he sustained in tax examination with tax examination being presumed

tc occur the amciur cogn zed is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater
than 50/o likely of being realized on

xa inati Ion is trons not meeting the more Ikely than not test no tax benefit is recorded It is the Companys

pc2icy to recogni rest ani penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as components of income taxes arid tc

disc lose if rc cog im itenst md penalties if material

Stckpd compens mtrc Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to

nployces aase 01 he fair value of these awards at the date of grant Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair

value of mcI opt on when rarmted and this cost is expensed over the required service period which sually the yes

of Frc At he market price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant is used for restricted stock awards

mc thrs 051 IX cc over tF required service period which is Lisually the vesting period of the stock awards

ira mens id cc st ecognrzed over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period For awards \A rth

mA ye mg in misatro cost is recogruzed on straight-line
basis over the recluisite service period ton the entire award
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNHCANT ACCOUN1NG POUCES CONTINUED

Comprehensive income Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue expenses gains and losses be

included in net income although certain changes in assets and liabilities such as unrealized gains and losses on available-

for-sale securities are reported as separate component of the equity section of the statement of financial condition Such

items along with net income are components of comprehensive income

Joss Contingencies Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are

recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated

Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have material effect on the financial statements

Earnings per common share Basic earnings per common share is net income divided by the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period The Companys outstanding stock options are the primary component of the

Companys diluted earnings per share All outstanding unvested share-based payment awards that contain rights to non-

forfeitable dividends are considered participating securities for this calculation Diluted earnings per common share include

the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock options Earnings and dividends
per share are

restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issuance of the financial statements

Fair value of financial instruments Fair values of financial instruments are estimated
using

relevant market information

and other assumptions as more fully disclosed in
separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of

significant judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad

markets for particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these estimates

Reclassifications Some items in the prior year
financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation

Reclassifications had no effect on prior year net income or shareholders equity

Recently issued accounting standards

In June 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-

05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive lncome.This ASU amends the FASB Accounting

Standards Codification to allow an entity the option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net

income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive

income or in two separate but consecutive statements In both choices an entity is required to present each component
of net income along with total net income each component of other comprehensive income along with total for other

comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive income ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present ihe

components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity The amendments to

the codification in the ASU do not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of

other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income ASU 2011-05 should be applied retrospectively For public

entities the amendments are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December

2011 Early adoption is permitted The Companys current practice of presenting separate consolidated statement of

comprehensive income meets the requirements set forth by this amendment

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common
Fair Va/Lie MeasLirement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S CAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRSs This ASU represents the converged guidance of the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board

IASB the Boards on fair value measurement The collective efforts of the Boards and their staffs reflected in ASU

2011-04 have resulted in common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair

value measurements including consistent meaning of the term fair value The Boards have concluded the common

requirements will result in greater comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements

prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and IFRSs The amendments to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification in this

ASU are to be applied prospectively For public entities the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods

beginning after December 15 2011 Early application public entities is not permitted The adoption of this standard did

not have material effect on the consolidated financial statements
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Mvt OF SCNFCAN1 ACCOUNUNG POUCES CON11NUED

ic ac ouni ng tan aids tka have been ssued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting hod es hut not

sp cd ally ad Iresse his re ort are not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial condiuon results

cratio lrqw ty

AS D. FROM BANKS

Cash and due Son banks totaled $30.3 mdlion at December 31 2012 compared to $34.9 million at De ember 31

201 ha is item the
process

of collecon and amounts due from correspondent banks and the ederal

Ba ik ire ins luic In cash and due from banks As of December 31 2012 interest-bearing cash on deposit with

sorrespondent bar tald $4.5 million compared to $1.7 million as of December 31 201 Interest-bearing cash on

poc4 ot re lPd rn ee Bank was $14.5 million as of December 31 2017 compared to $23.9 million as of Deemher

0l nds us in nterest bearing deposits but required to be on reserve with the Federal Reserve Bank to

meet gu ton rve eanng requirements totaled $3.8 million and $914000 as of December 31 2012 and 2011

rpectivly

NOlI NVE

Ii mo ii ci sos fur va luc amounts of securities owned as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are shown below

55404 260 99 55565

3052 68 31

50074 1313 n92 51 29

1974 852 J$3J 2L733

$130504 2493 37 $1 12760

in t/1OL/5Jf1d5

Sasii es avJluhle

Coy an ienI or ceicy

rpon
bonds

vt xtgage bar kcd

taI and moo

to il

Sc uruies ac nilable or

Covem font an icy

vIorIage han Led

tat and ms uicipa

31033 86 50 11069

52936 1431 16 5435

14514 532 j3 4861

$98483 4049 349 3100283
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Les5 than one year

One to five
years

Five to ten years

Over ten years

Mortgage hacked securities

Tota

9995

13252

30001

27182

50074

$130504

996

13395

30680

27423

51295

$1 32760

Securities with carrying amount of approximately $53.7 million at December 31 2012 and $57.0 million at December 31

2011 were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes

In 2012 the Bank sold $14.3 million in securities available-for-sale realizing gains of $161100 and losses of $270500 for an

overall net loss of $109400 In 2011 the Bank sold $9.1 million in securities available-for-sale reali7ing gains of $105400

and losses of $53000 for an overall gain of $52400

Information pertaining to securities with
gross

unrealized losses at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 aggregated

by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous loss position follows

2012

Securities available-for-sale

U.S Government and agency

Corporate bonds

Mortgage-hacked

State and municipal

Iota

Securities available for-sale

U.S Government and agenc\7

Mortgage-hacked

State and municipal

Total

13757

992

4794
2035

21578

6641

2581

4840

11 14064

Gross unrealized kss is less than $1 000

GE9GA AROJNA
OYie

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 2011

NOTE INVESTMENT SECURITIES CON1INLJED

The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31 2012 by contractual maturity are as follows Actual

maturities may differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities as the mortgages underlying the securities

may be called or prepaid without penalty therefore these securities are not included in the maturity categories in the

following maturity summary

Cost

Amortized Fair

Value

Dollars in thousands

Less than Twelve Months

Number Gross Number
Unrealized of

Securities Losses Securities

Dollars in thousands

15

99

92
38

$237

2011

Over Twelve Months

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

1365

365

Over Twelve Months

Fair
Gross

Value
Unrealized

Losses

3860 35
709 1111

14 _______
L55$ 148

Less than Twelve Months

Number Gross Number

of ie Unrealized of

Securities Losses Securities

Dollars in thousands

15
70
16

$10j3
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\O SI1JF IDES CON1NUED
Inagem eval eves nt securities for other-than-temporary impairment on periodic basis and more frequently

icr ccc nor ico ir condtions warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent

to schief the iir vi has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuers and the

enl ari iility ank ti retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated

rccosery ri Dr rinf the first quarter of 2011 the Bank determined one of its collateralized mortgage obligation

sccLr tes Wa other un temporarily impaired due to continLied deterioration of the underlying collateral Based on

pro cted future lcsse the Bink impaired the security by $38000 reducing the recorded nvestment balance to $1 t9000
If ic 5W un was oud the second quarter of 2011 with an additional loss on the sale of $30000

lnc lea in thcr us is an investment of approximately $289000 net of amortization in real estate rehabilitation

project xatel in yi that will provide the Bank with state tax credits for approximately the next three years

Decni 31 Ii

ieres race no Wt

corp rat rids

In ire med to

Px rs RBB

ossess gr iter ris

Sl i\ itch

tc srl he uriti

the
yross unrealized losses in securities available-far-sale are primarily the result of changes in market

iated tie credit quality of the underlying issuer All of the securities are U.S agency debt securities

age-hac-ked securities and municipal securities The Bank has determined that no declines in market

nether than temporary at December 31.2012 Securities rated below Moodys Baa or Standard

pc rchased Non-rated municipal secur ties are limited to those bonds in the state of Georgia an

th it Baa or BBB bonds Corporate bonds will have minimum rating at purchase of Moodys A3
Company does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is likely that it will not be requiied

ie their anticipated recovery
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NOTE 4- LOANS

The Bank engages in full complement of lending activities including commercial consumer and real estate loans The

composition of loans for the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

Commercial and industrial 19816 18864

Real estate construction land and land development 55926 73823

Real estate residential 55495 56563

Real estate commercial 130729 131725

Consumer 3921 4715

Total loans 265887 285690

Deferred loan fees 56 7b
Total loans 265811 285614

Allowance for loan losses

Loans net of allowance for loan losses 258Z7 278810

Loan segments

Commercial and industrial loans are directed principally towards individual partnership or corporate borrowers for variety

of business purposes These loans include short-term lines of credit short-term to medium-term plant and equipment loans

and loans for general working capital Risks associated with this type of lending arise from the impact of economic stresses

on the business operations of borrowers The Bank mitigates such risks to the loan portfolio by diversifying lending across

North American Industry Classification System NAICS codes and has experienced very low levels of loss for this loan type

for the past three years

Real estate construction land and land development loans consist of residential and commercial construction loans as

well as land and land development loans Land development loans are primarily construction and development loans to

builders in the Augusta and Savannah Georgia markets Given the significant decline in value for both developed and

undeveloped land due to reduced demand these loan portfolios possess an increased level of risk compared to other loan

types The Banks approach to financing the development financing the construction and providing the ultimate residential

mortgage loans to the residential property purchasers has resulted in less exposure to the effects of the aforementioned

decline in property
values These loans include certain real estate construction loans classified as acquisition development

construction 3he loans are managed by the Banks construction division

Real estate residential loans include residential mortgage lending and are primarily single-family residential loans secured

by the residential property Due to the decline in residential property
values and stagnant resale market this loan type

has experienced slight increase in losses over the past
three years Home equity lines are also included in real estate

residential loans

Real estate commercial loans include commercial mortgage loans that are generally secured by office buildings retail

establishments and other types of real property both owner occupied and non-owner occupied significant component

of this type of lending is to owner occupied borrowers including churches The economic slowdown has caused some

deterioration in values

Consumer loans consist primarily of installment loans to individuals for personal family or household purposes including

automobile loans to individuals and pre-approved lines of credit The Bank has experienced low levels of loss for this loan

type for the past three years compared to the other loan types

Loan risk grades

The Company categorizes loans into risk grades based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their

debt such as future repayment ability financial condition collateral administration management ability of borrower and

history and character of borrower Grades are assigned at loan origination and may be changed due to the result of loan

review or at the discretion of management The Company uses the following definitions for risk grades
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Alternate sources of cash exist such as the commercial paper market capital marke internal

ines These are national or regional companies with excellent cash flow which covers all debt service

nifrcant portion of capital expenditures Balance sheet strength and hquidity are excellent and exceed

icia1 trends are positive The compan es are market leaders within the industry and the industry

it This grade includes loans which are fully secured by cash or equivalents Includes loans secured by

vith no less than 25c margin Borrowers are of unquestionable financial
streng

Financial
standing

of

ic borrower exhibits superior liquidity net worth cash flow and leverage

cc \hc ye avc qua ity
There is minimal risk Borrowers have

strong stable financial trends There is strong cash

sw oce ng debt vice icqurements and some portion of capital expe iditures Alternate sources of repayment are evident

ii iaii rati coripar ble to or exceed the industry norms Financial trends are positive Borrower has prominent

pos ti thi itry or the local economy md the industry performance is above average Management is strong in

ri is rica and cc deoth is good Includes loans secured by marketable securities with margin less than 25% Inc ludes

idviclcal io iii asIc and reliable cash flow and above average liquidity and cash flow fhere is modest risk from

posurc to on in ihilir cs

rdc Aver ye ye it Cash flow is adequate to cover all debt service recluirements but not caoital expend tures tialanc

ci ert may Ic nyc hut still comparable to industry norms Financial trends are stable to mixed over the long term hut

3riific
ml cc cc resently exist Generally there is stable industry outlook may have some cycl cal characteristics

irrc wee an of yr posit on in the industry or the local economy The management team is considered capable and

Ii dr iniv duals wth reliable cash flow and alternate sources of repayment whk may requhe the sale

ci acts ncia ton has been leveraged to modest degree However the individual has relatively st ong net worth

ins derir inc ic

adc as quality Loan conditions
require more frequent monitoring Stability is lacking the primary

rcp ne cc src flow credit history or liquidity however the instability is manageable and considered temporary

Ovc all Ii ids ar ic yr adverse The loans exhibit Grade financial characteristics but lack proper and complete

dc cur rent ti in ividuals sources of income or cash flow have become unstable or may possibly decline given curren

hi nec on nditc ns he individual has highly everaged financial position or limited cap tal Speculative

ma ucti ii loan rated by third parties are included

ul in di subs idard loan has welbdefined weakness or weaknesses in the primary repayment source arid

id ic ccl nec is il on secondary repayment sources collateral or guarantors No loss is presently expected based on

cc rrc nt sscnn it colla al values and
guarantor cash flow However there is the distinct possibility that the Bank wil

cc sEa ne utc it the cr dit weaknesses are not corrected Management is inadequate to the extent that the business4

ihili Ic nrnuc ci ti is in question Intensive effort to correct the weaknesses and ensure protect on against loss of

cnpal idd oliater is mandatory Delinquency of principal or interest may exist Net worth repayment ability

man ye Ti it Oi reral protection all exhibit weakness In the case of consumer credit closed end onsumer installment

Ic in del it ccci 90 nd 119 days monthly payments will be minimally classhied Substandard Open end

cc ma lit vi mini ally assified Substandard if delinquent 90 to 79 days to billing cyc ds

ace Iigtect 10

liqui lity iii ibm

merit anc

the thu or
ci mar is excel

ke af Ic un ic

vidua is nosy

ioc ft

Ilann iosit cn

posit iii ide it

tie Hg cirthc id

Ii al mc tc ceo ic

akiny sitivc ster

st aIr itec hr

ci ciii ii yr to tic

etion if nec wc

ieci
ly Mentioned Ttiese loans have potential weaknesses which may inadequately urotect the

tun dite Unlike Grade credit adverse trends in the obligors operations arid/or financial

ut hav not yet developed into welbdefined credit weaknesses Specific negative events within

st have iccurred which may jeopardize cash flow Borrowers
operations are highly cyclical or

ir market conditions Management has potential sveaknesses and backup depth is lacking Borrower

alUviate potential weaknesses and has the potential for improvement and upgrade Corrective

3a ik
niay be required and active management attention is warranted Some mirror delinquencies may

ndivduals exhibit some degree of weakness in financial condition This may riiariifest itself ri

id Iiuidity Infrequent delinquencies may occur
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NOTE LOANS CONTINUED
Grade Doubtful doubtful loan has well-defined weaknesses as in Grade with the added characteristic that collection

or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values is highly questionable and improbable

The possibility of loss is extremely high but because of certain important and reasonably specific pending factors which

may work to strengthen the credit its classification as loss is deferred until more exact status can be determined Pending

factors include proposed merger acquisition liquidation procedures capital injection perfecting liens on additional

collateral and refinancing plans Borrower is facing extreme financial distress bankruptcy or liquidation and prospects for

recovery are limited Loans are seriously in default and should be on non-accrual status Collateral and guarantor protection

are insufficient Efforts are directed solely at retirement of debt e.g asset liquidation Due to their highly questionable

collectability assets rated doubtful should not remain in this category for an extended period of time

Grade Loss Loans classified loss are considered uncollectable and of such little value that their continuance as bankable

assets is not warranted This classification does not mean that the loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value but rather

it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off the asset while pursuing recovery The Bank should not attempt long-term

recoveries while the asset remains on the active loan system In the case of consumer credit closed end consumer installment

loans delinquent 120 days or more monthly payments will be classified Loss Open end consumer credit will be classified

Loss if delinquent 180 days or more or more billing cycles

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the credit risk grades of loans by loan class were as follows

Credit Risk Profile by Risk Grade Category

2012

Grades -4 Grade Grade Total

Dollars in thousandc

Commercial and industrial 19723 32 61 19816
Real estate construction land and land development

Acquistion development construction 13498 774 14272
Other real estate construction 41344 192 118 41654

Real estate residential

Home equity lines 19829 104 19937

Other real estate residential 33446 81 2031 35558

Real estate commcrcial

Owneroccupied 47833 5191 1804 54828

Non-owner occupied 72603 3103 195 75901
Consumer 3872 22 27 3921

Total loans receivable $252148 9499 4240 $265887

2011

Grades GradeS Grade Total

Dollars in thousands

Commercial and industrial 18118 751 18869

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquistion development construction 18469 1497 1366 21332

Other real estate construction 46685 1077 4699 52461
Real estate residential

Home equity lines 22104 392 22505

Other real estate residential 31742 365 1952 34059

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied 47336 227 5956 53519

Non-owner occupied 76385 593 1202 78180

Consumer 4501 79 4580
Loans in

process 185 185

Total loans receivable $265525 4151 $16014 $285690
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Du it 201 he aerienc ugnkicant increase in loans clasufied as Grade or Substandard mostly due to th

do vnftrad la lat nsl ip consoting of 10 loans totaling $8 million in the second quarter
The rd tionship was

madi up if $00000 estate esidennal $4.3 million real estate construction land and land development and $4.4

ml non eil s1ate nercia As of December 31 2012 the Bank had transferred the total relationship to other real estati

ossned and the naic bak nec of he properties that have not been sold was $4.5 million

Deer tub 2012 and 2011 the Bank had no loans classified as Grade or It is the Banks practice ii most

ca to tak whi loan or portion of loan is deemed doubtful or loss Consequently the remaining prin ipal

balan ii ahich has been evaluated as collectable is graded accordingly

Alk wanc ior oa Losses

Th toll vi iy
taD re cr is ftc activity in the allowance for loan losses by loan segment for the

years
ended December

2012 201

Al ossesA

ec

est
lo ci

er

oil irs in thousands

1dn5 halar ces

individu
113

valualt repairmen

elk tiscly cd np eric it

28

197

Y7
lie 682

227

40
o2

64
182

793 866

G1681

370

348 72

443 630

Endirg baanus

Ir ivreuall leak sam sen1

Ire vr ly eat s3 arrir nt

SI

134

208 100 36

219 933 1606 72

39

443 1409

Be31n 13
ha Ian 183 32 19 1141 1706 118 445 6814

tree elk 98 6923 242 79 08 1319

ke ncr 225 734 43 14 58 1071

Prove mc 87 391i 148 331 19 329 60

sdin 225 2870 794 1872 77 393

185

LZ_0 735 1687 77

ieriing balanir

liare ot

ov ncr

14 vs

Li dinp hift

3908

21 34

20

1425

32I

1070

570
147

494

141

1617

31

99

309

1706

231

105
31

89
108
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NOTE 1OANS CONTINUED

The following table presents the recorded investment in loans receivable by loan segment as of December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Ending balance total $19888 $56223 55789 131190 3941 $267031

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Ending balance total 19003 74173 56807 $132151

80 17961

$4660 13
4740 286874

DoIIar in thousands

90 566 2376 6770 27 9829

19798 55657 53413 $124420 3914 $73Q

950 5925

18053 68248

Dollars in thousands

1591 9415

55216 $j$6
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OA\S NUNIJED

Impaired Loans

oarir or cC it obable that the payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual

term ftfc loan go cot are considered impaired and are individually evaluated for impairent Impaired loans for

wE interest rcc cc on cash basis is im aterial for disclosure The following tables present loans individually

cv luatcd for impa rmt it md rclated allowance by loan class for the years ended December 31 2012 and 201

\/\ ih ic Ilowa corded

OmiTicr 131 and mdv ml

st ice nsto or nd arc and development

\quisi ior dove cc struction

Jther al rLte rue ion

al stae rc idcnti

tome cpu tiC

tNt ci estate id nrial

t1L remrn

Is icr ccuomed

Nc owner or cup cd

OilS 001

th allo aa cc ci

or ii crc ii nclu

state co isle ct ci and nd land development

Sc vlsi mc levc op consi uc 11011

roil sc te rut ion

state rcsiden

ic eq inco

rth rc Cs lie nt 11

cal rate onirr

1cr ccc upmecl

Ion ocr oc cu
10 aim

foal 1lrl in
torn torcin id mdv -t

Ru statc irtrrie io and nd land development

\c visit clevc
-p

ii or strLictmon

her cs ate cr rucrion

Kr stat cl nt

Ic ii dully line

dl rrc Ic crc rtal

Kc al slUr liii

rvr cro cc acd

No or cc up

oniirTic

61 453

2457 447 2429 21

197 119 206

70 70 71

2129 1961 2283 96

6051 5866 6168 258

37 27 41

Ii 001 8554 jJ55 .5 40

29 29 29 32

5t

274 1375 272 307

89 90 29
.5

486
.5

70 74

2306 60 629

Dollars in thoijsandc

13

il

342 342

141

760

60 146

143

761

2-i

160

149

780

447

119

2429
206

2457
197

70

2471

6196

760

37

.5 12277

6009

761

27

.5 9829

21

266

-1

.5 488

2-i

160

272

6117

780

41

.5 7967
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With no related allowance recorded

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquisition development construction

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Home equity lines

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Consumer

Total

45 36

23343 7001

Do//arc in thousands

884 887 859 39

3663

6558

58

1368

6730
4037

1101

4824

58

1275

6729

2091

36

222

36

222

With an allowance recorded

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquisition development construction

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Home equity lines

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Consumer

Total

Total Impaired Loans

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquisition development construction

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Home equity lines

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Consumer

Total

12

196

1670 20

5344 172

57

1331 55

6022 377

2768 163

________ 39

______ ______ L18090 830

62 63 51 70

14

593 39

43 ________ ________ ________
956 _________ 60

946 950 51 929 43

3663 1101 1670 20

6558 4824 5344 172

94 94 12 93

1590 1497 196 1554 69

6730 6729 6022 377

4630 2686 100 3378 202

88 80 36 88

24299 $i71 395 19078 890

36

223

595

44

960

100

36

$___ 395

610

49

988
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NUED
lb how ug tahft sent summary of current past

due and nonaccrual loans as of December 31 20 and 201 by

class

mr ci im

si it antru md and land development

nsit on ado ri it co istruction

Other ml ct to uc ion

Ral tat eCdert

llorwcqu lies

th st ito ml it ml

Ri st rnmerl

Owrem ou
ii O\A iC upi

on msor

no

ii Ui iii iLi 3111 Ii iU

Real stat em true and and nd deaelopment

cquo tio ft cc istruction

di ìl est to aci ion

Real state reside

mm ec ci ncs

th re ito ft nt

Ream stats mm
Owr or api

Non osw uS

an urn

Dollars in thorn audi

134 61 195 l962l 19816

134 134 l4l38 1427

1318 68 1386 40268 41634

211 108 319 11618 9937

1322 776 3098 32460 355a8

941 l327 2468 52360 54828

772 195 967 74934 7591

27 27 54 _3867
4725 3896 3621 257366 26588

173 18691 $86-I

1101 17216 830
4393 51113 55 06

11 407 22098 2250
1131 2466 31592 34041

TIme Bat ft polity leant placed on nonaccrual will typically remain on nonaccrual status until all principal arid interest

ym at arc mgI ur emit arid the prospect
for future payments in accordance with the loan agreeme appear relat aely

cc ti ii 4he 13 nk pt generally refers to six months 01 payment performance as sufficient to arrarmt return to act rual

Tyo ibed debt stru twings

Fr ub ied eb rca 35 are defined as debt modifications for economic or legal reasons related to the borrowers

him cial ft ultd whir the Bank
grants

concession that it would not otherwise consider

108

liars in thousands

1101

4063330

290

1335

3447

67

120

5697

196

1007

54

7734

3643

1074

74

3431

51332

75616

4541

272259

035
669t

4717

2135690
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NOTE LOANS CONTNUED
Such concession may stem from an agreement between the Bank and the borrower or may be imposed by law or court

Some examples of modifications are as follows

Rate Modification modification in which the interest rate is changed

Term Modification modification in which the maturity date timing of payments or frequency of payments is changed

Interest Only Modification modification in which the loan is converted to interest only payments for period of time

Payment Modification modification in which the dollar amount of the payment is changed other than an interest only

modification described above

Transfer of Assets Modification modification in which transfer of assets has occurred to partially satisfy debt including

foreclosure and repossession

Combination Modification Any other type of modification including the use of multiple categories above

The following tables
present the Banks loans classified as troubled debt restructurings by loan class as of December 31 2012

and 2011

As of December 31 2012

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquisition development construction

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Home equity lines

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Consumer

Total

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Acquisition development construction

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Home equity lines

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Consumer

Total

23 L5.146 1588 j6734

As of Iecernber 31 2011

Dollars in thousands

649

462

10 6027

1081

20 8219

649

730

262

Dollars in thousandsj

34 34

114.310

66

10 583

418

444

66

826

5364

243

1177

730

262

559

1.551

462

6027

1640

9770
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tr taled $0 and 105 tO respectively
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years
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Tota

8$ 557243 80t

243 557 80t

243 566 809

243 566 809

Dollais in thousands

340

215 71

2387 1lOt

755 71 287 1100

310

99

____
660

286

368

4313

461
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NOTE IOANS CONTINUED

The following tables
represent

loans receivable modified as troubled debt restructurings and with payment default with

the payment default occurring within 12 months of the restructure date and the payment default occurring during the years

ended December31 2012 and 2011

Commercial and industrial

Real estate construction land and land development

Other real estate construction

Real estate residential

Other real estate residential

Real estate commercial

Owner occupied 1001 811

Total 1035 811

At December 31 2012 executive officers and directors were indebted to the Bank in the aggregate amount of approximately

$6376000 Following is summary of transactions for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of
year 9813 12474

Advances 4607 7557

Repayments 8044 021

Balance at end of year 6376 9813

NOTE BANKOWNED UFE INSURANCE BOU
In September 2007 an $8.0 million bank-owned life insurance policy BOLl was acquired in order to insure the key officers

of the Bank As of December 31 2012 the BOLl cash surrender value was $10.0 million resulting in other income for 2012

of $392000 and an annualized net yield of 4.01% As of December 31 2011 the BOLl cash surrender value was $9.6

million resulting in other income for 2011 of $399000 and an annualized net yield of 4.33%

NOTE BANK PREMSES AND EQUIPMENT

Bank premises and equipment consist of the following as of December 31 2012 and 2011

201 2011

Dollars in thousands

Land and improvements 3839 3838

Building and improvements 6445 6418

Equipment furniture and fixturec 41
Construction in progress 80

14964 14769

Less accumulated depreciation 5790
Premises and equipment net 8790 8979

Depreciation expense for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was approximately $517000 and $521000

respectively

Rental expense of office premises and equipment was approximately $265000 for each of the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands

34
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DCCCTi or 6nd 20 the Bank had other real estate owned totaling $5.9 million and 57.0 mi hon respectively

ins ar losses Ic of other real estate owned are ncluded in other non-interest income in the consolidated

ste ci ients per
Rental income troni leasing certain other real estate totaled approximately $686000 and $22 000

fo th ars ends cemher 2012 and 2011 respectively and is included in other non-interest inco tie For the year

rr ded icr riber 012 tie 3ank recorded $40000 gain on sale of other real estate compared to $1 32000 gain

oii sale 4her ii ststefoi tho year ended December 31 2011 Other real estate owned expenses include holding osts

re aed 10 other real rs ate owned as well as valuation adjustments The Bank recorded valuation adjustments of $1434000

ar $6 000 for rs ended December 201 and 2011 respectively For the years ended December 31 2012 and

20l lb nk us ed property into other real estate owned totaling $5.2 million and $6.9 millior respectively

Dersm icr 2t aid 201 the scheduled maturities of time deposit liabilities were as follows

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

yr less 96065 $148379

ir through to years 37116 36

Dv srs through three years 22725 7175

Over iears through four years 4290 6665

Ofa yas 9177 3868

1ol Al69376 A82

Is rum gs
the B6 nk unding capabilities the Bank may also enter into repurchase agreements with customers and may

tain shr ci ft 1mg from rther institutions RepLirchase agreements with customers are generally secured by investment

sw unfit vi cc Bank and are established at prevailing market rates Short-term func ing from other institutions

ci Ily iv igl 30 day funding it current market rates Total repurchase agreements were approximately $3.3 million

million it cci iber 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Total brokered and internet deposits were $27.8 Ilion and

ill or at ib 312012 and 2011 respectively

OJVE LOAN BANK ADVANCES

Her uif cr in 2011 the Bank had credit availability or potential borrowing capacity of 25% of total assets

SLit in the Bans ci ucial ondition and collateral balances with the Fl ILB One of the advance products utilized in 2t II

20 ci lbs ns -Ic for Sale LHFS program The line is collateralized by the Banks mortgage loans held for sale

Ivanc ir ten ii ii clue 90 days from the date of the advance As of December 2012 and 2011 the Bank did not

hcvc ib tianc it ug under the LHFS program As of December 31 2012 the Bank had $25.7 million in loans held for

Ic pledger roll it ra unrlcr this line

TI ink nt us lint of credit with the FIILB which is secured by 1-4 family and commercial real estate loans held

lh Ba uks loin uo olmo On Septcmber 26 20 the Bank borrowed $25000000 with the Federal lome Loan Ban

ouh Ii ir -4 md commercial real estate loan short-term line of credit product The balance at clecember 31 20 12

ri 0O0 aribl interest rate 0.424 and maturity date of September 30 2013 At Dc ember 2012

thn 13 ink rd 651 Ili in in 1-4 family and commercial real estate loans pledged as collateral to the Federal Ionic Loan

In ft n-tr nr an ertible advance was established During the
year

ended December 31 2012 the Bank paid olf

th tst ding hahn an this advance of $100 million with weighted average interest rate of 3.83 /o he balance it

her 31 is 10.0 million

Air edt hut long term convertible advance was established during 2008 During the
year ended December 31

7012 th Baimkp it the outstanding balance on this advance of $18 Ornillion with weighted average interest rate of

lb arci Peceruhcr 31 2011 was S15.0 The Bank paid penalty of $392000 for pre-payment of the advances

ci me ion It tel Ocr ncn interest expense
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEHT PLANS

The Bank has 401k salary-deferred plan covering substantially all employees At the discretion of the Banks Board of

Directors the Bank may match percentage of the annual amounts deferred by employees Matching amounts are funded by

the Bank as accrued Total deferred and matching amounts are limited to amounts that can be deducted for Federal income

tax purposes The Banks matching contributions were approximately $200000 and $1 87000 for the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The Bank has Nonqualified Executive Deferred Compensation Plan EDCP covering select group of key employees and

senior management The EDCP allows participating employees to elect each
year

to defer compensation into participant

account At its discretion the Bank may also elect to make discretionary contributions to the participant account For both

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the EDCP expense including employee deferrals and contributions made by the

Bank totaled $23000 The accrued liability related to the EDCP was approximately $74000 and $60000 at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively

The Bank also has Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP for the benefit of certain key officers The SERP

provides selected employees who satisfy specific eligibility requirements with supplemental benefits upon retirement

termination of employment death disability or change of control of the Bank in certain prescribed circumstances The

Bank recorded expense totaling $294000 and $279000 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The accrued liability related to the SERP was approximately $1188000 and $894000 as of December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively

NOTE 11 REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS

The primary source of funds available to the Company is the payment of dividends by its subsidiary bank Banking regulations

limit the amount of dividends that may be paid by the Bank without prior approval of certain regulatory agencies The amount

of dividends allowable without prior approval was $12253000 at December 31 2012

In 2012 the Company began paying cash dividends to shareholders Three quarterly dividends of $0.04 per share were paid

for total of $431500 for the
year

ended December 31 2012

On January 28 2013 the Company declared cash dividend of $0.04 per share to all shareholders of record as February 12
2013

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by state and Federal banking agencies Failure to

meet minimum capital requirements can trigger certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators

that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Banks consolidated financial statements

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific

capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as

calculated under regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors Prompt corrective action provisions are not

applicable to bank holding companies

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts

and ratios set forth in the table below of total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk-weighted assets as

defined and of Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined Management believes that as of December 31 2012
the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject

As of December 31 2012 the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as well-capitalized

under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To be categorized as well-capitalized the Bank must maintain

minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the table below There are no conditions

or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Banks category
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AIOI AP AL \4AFTERS CONTINIJEDI

Tke Pinks a% ial
ipi amot nts in thousands and ratios as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are presented in the

ft los ing laD

of Dee thor 31 20

13 ii

cap
tal to risk hi ase
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er capital risk tht asets

iso Ce
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54867 11 .32c 9383 4.00% 24229 50000

348651 2.1 lo 16067 4.00% $24100

49293 12.27o 16067 4.00% 24lOt

48651 974% 19987 4.00o 24964

49293 9864 19995 400% 24993

O\4ELNSAU

the ny pted the 1997 Stock Option Plan the 1997 Plan for eligible directos officers and key

ny and the Bank The 1997 Plan expired in 2007 and no more grants may be made pursuant to this

printed to purchase common shares at prices not less than the fair market value of the stock at the date

is defned to mean the
average closing price for the ten business days prior to the da of board

iaxirr um number of shares reserved and available for issuance under the 1997 Plan is 345000

thc Ccmpanys stock splits and stock dividends

the arr vidc gra it ot both incentive and nonqualifiecl stock options to purchase the Companys common stock

cc Siock or re mittee if the Board of Directors ot the Company establishes to whom options sha.l be granted and

ci in xercise ices metf ods of exercise vesting requirements and the number of shares covered by each option

sob to he
iPl

the Companys Board of Directors

Coiisol cc

$58321 16.59% $28125 8.00 535156 000
59262 16.86% 28125 8.00% 33136 0000

$53694 13.3700 32134

54336 13.533 $32114

$40167

8.00 $40167

6.00
6.00%

5.00

5.00

Ioyet of the

plar p1 ons we

in ir market

apro\ai nd
fra

es d1uste

urine ca 200
ei ip ovces of the

ire ritiv stko
tires riot lesc th

rio ig br cc

id avala $e It

mpanv adopted the 2004 Incentive Plan the 2104 Planh for eligible directors officars and key

pany ar the Bank The Plan allows awards of stock performance units stOcK ipreciation rights

nomquJified stock options and phantom stock Options are granted to purchase common shares at

tair arket value of the stock at the date of grant Fair market value is defined to mean the average

usiness days prior to the date ot hoard approval and grant The maximum number of shares rcsrv

cc under the 2004 Plan is 330 125 shares as adjusted tor the Companys siock split in 2005
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NOTE 12 STOCK BASED COMPENSATION CONTINUED

During 2012 the Company approved the Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive Plan and granted restricted stock awards

of 5988 shares of common stock to officers and employees These awards vest fully at the end of three years The grants

resulted in expense of $35210 for the
year

ended December 31 2012

The Company recorded compensation expense of approximately $1 08000 in both 2012 and 2011 related to employee

stock options No stock options were issued during the year ended December 31 2012

The estimated fair value of options is amortized to expense over the options vesting period Option valuation models require

the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility Changes in the subjective input

assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate In managements opinion the model does not necessarily provide

reliable single measure of the fair value of options

Vesting requirements are determined by the Board of Directors at the time options are granted and generally provide for

vesting over seven-year period The plans provide that
vesting periods may not exceed ten years

summary of the Companys stock option activity under the plans as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and changes and

related information for the years then ended is presented below

Options

Outstanding at January 12012
Granted

Exercised 5.55

Forfeited or expired _________ 7.96

Outstanding at December 31 2012 11.21 4.12 $583833

Fully vested and expected to vest ________ 11.21 4.12 $583833

Exercisable at December 31 2012 ________ 12.59 2.81 $251921

Outstanding at January 2011 283289 9.94 4.50 t2 39951

Granted 29640 8.10

Exercised 22585 3.48

Forfeited or expired ________

Outstanding at December 31 2011 290344 10.26 4.35 67631

Fully vested and expected to vest 290344 10.26 4.35 67631

Exercisable at December 31 2011 196828 11.06 2.77 67631

At December 31 2012 options both outstanding and exercisable under both plans have exercise prices that range from

$7.00 per
share to $20.41 per

share The weighted-average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at December 31
2012 was approximately 4.12

years or 50 months

290344 10.26

45491
6125

238728

238728

160861

49



GEGk dAROYJLINA
Ia44wiea Y2w

NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED HNANCAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 20

\SED COMPENSATON CON IINUED

he ir lur of ii optIons was estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes option valuation model that used the

loll wing rirge a0 m9tions for each of the years presented
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NOTE 12 STOCK BASED COMPENSATION CON11NJED

In addition directors may choose to purchase stock under this plan in lieu of directors fees paid for meeting attendance In

2011 these shares were purchased at $2.00 below the fair value of the shares on the date of the grant Beginning in 2012

shares under the plan were purchased at 85% of the fair value of the shares on the date of the grant The Company has

defined fair value under the plan to be the average closing market price of the Companys common stock for the last ten

trading days of each
quarter as reported on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board The Company records the expense related

to the purchases at fair value of the shares on the date of the grant At December 31 2012 there were 70434 shares

authorized and unissued under the plan The following table represents activity in the Directors Equity Incentive Plan in

2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Beginning shares authorized and unissued 21739 54539

Additional shares authorized and unissued 73199

Shares issued 24504 32800

Ending shares authorized and unissued 170434 21739

summary of common stock issued through the exercise of employee stock options and employee/director compensation

and expense are as follows

2012 2011

Ne options exercised 45491 22585

Issuance of stock for compensation 15988

Issuance of stock for directors fees 24504 32800

Net issuance of common stock 85983 55385

NOTE 13 EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Following is reconciliation of the income amounts and common stock amounts utilized in computing the Companys

earnings per
share for each of the

years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011

2012

Income Shares Per

Numerator Denominator Share

dollars in thousands except per share

Basic

Net income available to common shareholder 6621 3599431 1.84

Effect of stock options outstanding

Diluted

Net income available to common shareholder 6621 3599431 1.84

2011

Income Shares er
Numerator Denominator Share

dollars in thousands except per share

Basic

Net income available to common shareholder 4099 3561064 1.15

Effect of stock options outstanding

Diluted

Net income available to common shareholder 4099 3361064 1.1

For the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 there were 129417 and 166156 options respectively that were

antidilutive since the exercise price exceeded the average market price for the year
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Other noi inormi xe see or years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

Data
pr sing 1050 821

FDl men 403 504

mu con itlng 781 672

Pm rd supalies 290 280

Ads ne 177 228

in mm developt sent 144 40

3m a- a-i sunications 194 201

On side cv ces 240 236

ourie id
postage

78 70

8oftv la-i nse fee 92 89

iff aid snty tixes 149 34

Arm ii fees 275 282

lrav$ employee meals and entertainment 180 61

rovis in mortgage recourse liability 499 iOO

Leal ftment payable 598

FtlLB payoff penalty 392

1048 Ij
692 5613

AOl iriconi taxe hc state nents of income for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2012 2011

Dollars in thoLisands

rov sion 3278 1608

crerrc tax expcns benetit 615 210

lot a- mme tax expense benefit 2663 L838

hank
pr

vAr ir or income taxes differs from the amounts computed by applying the Federal and state income tax

statutory to in re before income taxes reconciliation of the diflerences is as follows

2012 2011

rAe atulory rates 34.00 34.0

Star ma-es oetO fpderal benefit 3.8

a-pt
income 1.5 2.3

State credit 2.6 4.3

Bank liD insurance .4 2.3
Deu state Lx credt valuation allowance 0.0

DAm OA

28.8
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NOTE 15 INCOME TAXES CONTINUED
The primary components of deferred income taxes at December 31 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2012 2011

Do//arc in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 1689 1847

Executive compensation plans 502 361

Valuation adjustment of other real estate owned 437 362

Recourse liability 293

Contingent liability
228

Investment in GA low-income housing tax credits 270 231

State tax credits 281 416

Mortgage derivatives IRLC expenses 115

Other 102 52

Total deferred income tax assets 3917 3269

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 798 648
Qualified prepaids 131 132

Depreciation on bank premises and equipment 174 202

Mortgage derivative change in method 439
Total deferred income tax liabilities 1542 982

Valuation allowance 270 647

Net deferred income tax assets 2105 1640

Deferred tax assets are included in other assets Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax

consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities

and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply

to taxable income in the
years

in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered in income Deferred tax

assets are reduced by valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized

Prior to 2012 the Company had created full valuation allowance for the Georgia Form 900 tax credits During 2012 the

Company reversed the deferred tax valuation allowance that was recorded against these tax credits since it was determined

that based on the profitability of the Company and other positive evidence that these state tax credits would be utilized

before their expiration dates The Company continues to reflect full valuation allowance on its investment in Georgia Low

Income Housing Project to reflect managements estimate of the temporary deductible differences that may expire prior to

their utilization

Management has evaluated all other tax positions that could have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements

and determined the Company had no uncertain income tax positions at December 31 2012

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax within the state of Georgia The

Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for
years

before 2009

NOTE 16 COMMTMENTS AND CONTNGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business the Bank may enter into off-balance-sheet financial instruments that are not reflected in

the consolidated financial statements These instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit

Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments

become payable

The Bank uses the same credit policies for these off-balance-sheet financial instruments as it does for other instruments that

are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
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NO CM 4ENISANDCONHNC
llowing ui an cc significant off-balance-sheet financial instruments for the years ended Decemaer 312 and 201

oils le tc eXir nd credit

Standby titers of credit ________

rn nitm nt ger bays fixed oxpiration datcs or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee Since

the omrn nt amounts expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily

ert uura ih oure rents In managing the Banks credit and market risk exposure the Banl mas participate these

riin ii nts wi ft inst tutrons when funded The credit risk involved in issuing these financial instruments is essential

the sam toal xc in extending loans to customers The amount of collateral obtained if dcemed necessary by the

upo 15 xtensior credit is based on managements credit evaluation of the customer Collateral held varies but

nay includc rca md improvements marketable securities accounts receivable inventory equipment and personal

rop rty

Be rn balan 245

Pros

Los

Ret se

Lnd slince

167

nc ss of thu Bank is such that it ordinarily results in certain amount of litigation In the opinion of

it er II 2012 there were no pending litigation matters in which the anticipated outcome would have

cr1 oi the onsolidatecl financial statements

Iii if gue 201 thu nk was sued in State Court by subcontractor related to residential development projct foreclosed

Li iou by ank suit alleged various claims against the Bank all of which the Bank denied ollosving mistrial in

ovcmhc 2012 vte hejurv tailed to reach verdict second trial in January 2013 resLilted in verdict againstthe Bar l\

in tlx am ount of 00 he Bank is in the process of appealing this verdict and believes it has meritorious delenses

airisl it rd lie cntirc ju Igment amount was recorded as contingent liability as of December 2012 therefore

ra uife ne it does expec that there will be any future material adverse effects on the Companys iture consolidated

ial ocr icr ill of operations or cash flows related to this litigation

2012 2011

48976

1029

50005

Dollars in thousandi

46923

5288

52211

ian so under

ian alc a3rcemen

rt inn lit nted Co Ic

tie horns em if

lr add rio itt thu

in shot pci no

arc qc
ired ire

epir nas rI loin

for lort ge oar

eucmhc 20

ornpa iys mortgage loans held for sale portfolio corita certain representations and warranties our

vh ch provide that we repurchase or indemnify the iavestors for losses or costs on loans we sell under

ins Sc me of these conditions include underwriting errors or omissions fraud or materia misstatements

can app icat on or invalid market value on the collateral
property

due to deficienies in the appraisal

iresenlations and warranties our loan sale contracts define condition in which the borrower defaults

it time typically 120 days to one year as an Early Payment Default In the event of an EPD sve

Fe premium paid by the investor for the loan as well as certain administrative fees and in some cases

ideninify the investor Based oa these recourse provisions
the Bank established recourse liability

urirg
tie fourth quarter ot 2011 The following table demonstrates the activity for the years ended

c2011

2012 2011

Dollais in thousands

499

305

245

ratu tic

ni in moer nt at

steri ii advc rn ci

195

Z2
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NOTE 16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES CONTINUED

The Bank has various contractual obligations that it must fund as part of normal operations The following table shows

aggregate
information as of December 31 2012 about contractual obligations for data processing operating leases and

service contracts as well as the periods in which payments are due

2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total

Dollars in thousands

Data processing 930 930 506 2376

Operating leases 214 42 39 12 11 318

Service contracts 243 96 96 24 459

Construction contract 690 690

Total 2077 1068 L_J41 41 16 3f843

NOTE 17 MORTGAGE BANKING DERIVATIVE

Commitments to fund certain mortgage loans interest rate locks to be sold into the secondary market and forward

commitments for the future delivery of mortgage loans to third party investors are considered derivatives It is the Companys

practice to enter into forward commitments for the future delivery of residential mortgage loans when interest rate lock

commitments are entered into in order to economically hedge the effect of changes in interest rates resulting from its

commitments to fund the loans These mortgage banking derivatives are not designated in hedge relationships At year-

end 2012 the Company had approximately $35.9 million of interest rate lock commitments and $80.3 million of forward

commitments for the future delivery of residential mortgage loans The fair value of these mortgage banking derivatives was

reflected by derivative asset of $485000 and derivative liability of $409000 The net gains relating to interest rate lock

commitments used for risk management were $303000 for the
year ending December 31 2012 The net losses for forward

contracts related to mortgage loans held for sale were $227000 for the
year

ended December 31 2012 At year-end 2011

the Company had approximately $37.0 million of interest rate lock commitments and $80.4 million of forward commitments

for the future delivery of residential mortgage loans The fair value relating to the interest rate lock commitments was

$314000 for the year ending December 31 2011 The fair value of the forward commitments related to mortgage loans

held for sale was $479000 Fair values were estimated based on changes in mortgage interest rates from the date of the

commitments Changes in the fair values of these mortgage-banking derivatives are included in net gains on sales of loans

NOTE 18 SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

Income taxes paid 3225 1766

Interest paid 3897 6229

Interest received 20529 22288

Transfers from loans to real estate owned 5186 6889

Unrealized gainIoss on securities 305 916

NOTE 19 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company utilizes fair value measurement to record fair value adjustments to other certain assets and liabilities and to

determine fair value measurements where required For these assets and liabilities recorded at fair value it is the Companys

policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value

measurements

The Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities

are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value These levels are as follows

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets such as the New York Stock Exchange At

December 31 2012 the Companys Level assets include U.S Government agency obligations
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çl \aluatio is sssets and liabilities tha are derived from other valuation methodologies includi
ig option pricing

modls scounted flow models and similar techniques and not based on market exchange dealer or brorer traded

tr insa ion cve ado is incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to

ssch iss or liahihd evcl assets include impaired loans and other real estate owned as discussed below

Full vin derr or of vuluaticn methodulugies used for determiring fair value for assets and liaoilities

lnvestmen Se uritic viilablefor-Sale

ivestn en sc uritic wa lablmforwalc are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Fair value meascrement is based upon

qu tc po if quoted prices are not available fair values are measured using independent pricing models or

othc rods ass iation techniques such as present
value of future cash flows adjusted for the securities credit rating

epayrnent assu pti and other factors such as credit loss assumptions At December 31 20l2 the Company classified

%/.C dli sod million of investment securities availablwfoosale sLibject to recurring
fair value adjustments as level

and Si rcs vely At December 31 201 the Company classified $0 and $100.3 million of iveste ent sec unties

ail rLIe ile to ri curring fair value adjustments as Level and Level respectively

iars

lie om loss or loans at fair value on recurring
basis However from time to time loan is considered

iripliri in an sllou ancc for loan losses is established Loans with respect to which it is probable that osyment of inteiest

orr orc these collateral dependent impaired loans at fair value as nonrecurring Level Collateral

len ira re us rd1 orded attair value totaled $3.2 million and $5.2 million at December 312012 and December

01 as icc iv pcitic loan loss allowances for these impaired loans totaled $272000 arid 95000 it Dcemher

012 id Dec if ci 201 respectively At December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 $2.9 million and $4.8

illft ii airs ne of allossance for loan losses were classified as Level respectively

foiFIek Icr Sue

Lorn ft irm1ed at fair valLie as determined by oLitstanding commitments from third
party

investors Level

The
fly tie fair value option for loans held for sale on july 2012 These loans are intended for sale and the

ni eI ev Ia vilue is the best indicator of the resolution of these loans Interest income is recorded based

or tie contra tuU of tIe loan and in accordance vvith the Company policy on loans held for inves merit None ol

tI se ft ii aw 91 ss rr sore past
due nor on nonaccrual as of December 2012 and 201 As December 1012

II

iggr
In as 18 million the contractual balance including accrued interest was $48.3 millio and the gain

ii ied fri thc in taim value included in earnings for the
year

ended December 31 2012 vvas $1 7900t

evel sI atio

volving iar is

arid valuatior arc

clii Ic ovcmn

hta ned from readily available pricing sources via independent providers for markct transactions

or liabili ies The Companys principal market for these securities is the secondary institutional rnarkts

cI on observable market data those markets At December 2012 the Companys Level assets

mit agency obligations staic and municipal bonds and mortgagwhacked securities

anc inns al wi

icr an individu

12w eli ib es tohs

svever soms

ds ited ish wv

01 th
exps

ctc mc

of thc tot
nil aim

as ordaw ss rh

clissiti ati in mit

Cs value

is dab ma

is is ab cmvi

made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are cons clered impaircd

ide itified as impaired management measures the impairment in accordance with ASC OUS
nt Vie isorements the fair value of impaired loans is estimated primar ly using thc collateral value

other methods are used such as market value of similar debt enterprise value liquidanion value amid

sose imaaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans with respect to which thr fair valur

ients cm collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans At December 2012 substantial

loan svere evaluated based on the fair value of the collateral less estimated selling costs In

Ia impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair calue of collareral requU
alue his rarchy Most fair values of the collateral are based on an observable mar \et price or urreiit

arty appraiser tax valuation or broker pri opinion however in some cases an appraised value

iyenient determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the aopraised value amid

sre pm cc
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NOTE 19 FMR VALUE OF HNANCAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Interest Rate Lock and Forward Commitments

Commitments to fund mortgage loans interest rate locks to be sold into the secondary market and forward commitments

for the future delivery of these mortgage loans are accounted for as free standing derivatives Fair values of these mortgage

derivatives are estimated based on changes in mortgage interest rates from the date the interest on the loan is locked Changes

in the fair values of these derivatives are included in net gains on sales of loans At December 31 2012 the interest rate

lock commitments with positive fair value totaled $97000 and were recorded as an other asset The interest rate lock

commitments with negative fair value at December 31 2012 totaled $49000 and were recorded as an other liability

The Company enters into forward commitments for the future delivery of mortgage loans when interest rate locks are entered

into in order to hedge the change in interest rates resulting from its commitments to fund the loans Changes in the fair values

of these derivatives are included in net gains on sales of loans At December 31 2012 the interest rate lock commitments

with positive fair value totaled $49000 and were recorded as an other asset The interest rate lock commitments with

negative fair value at December 31 2012 totaled $97000 and were recorded as an other liability

Other Real Estate Owned

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to other real estate owned Subsequently other real

estate owned is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less estimated selling costs Fair value is based upon

independent market prices appraised values of the collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral Most

fair values of the collateral are based on an observable market price or current appraised value however in some cases

an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the

appraised value and there is no observable market price Management may apply discount adjustments to the appraised

value for estimated selling costs information from comparable sales and marketability of the property As such the Company

records other real estate owned with subsequent write downs after transfer as nonrecurring Level Other real estate owned

that has had subsequent write-downs after transfer from loans to other real estate totaled $1 .2 million and $1 .0 million at

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

The tables below present information about assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2Ol2 Using

Quoted Prices Significant Significant

in Acttvc Other Other

Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets

level LeveL Level

Do//arc in thousands

U.S Government and agency 55565 55565

Corporatebonds 3112 3112

Mortgage-backed residential GSEs 51295 51295

State and municipal 22788 22788

Total $132760 $132760

Loans held for sale 48432 48432

Derivative assets 485 485

Dnrivative liahilitiesfl 409 409

1This amount includes mortgage related interest rate lock commitments and commitments to sell
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NOTE 19 FAIR VAUJE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
The following tables represent changes in nonrecurring fair value recorded during the

years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Balance at December 31 2011

Gains included in earnings

Gross reductions

Transfers into out of Level

Balance at December 31 2012

5854

103

3866
1999

4090

Gross reductions in other real estate owned included $1752000 in sales and $228000 in write downs

Balance at December 31 2010

Gains losses included in earnings

Gross additions reductions

Transfers into out of Level

Balance at December 31 2011

Dollars in thousands

4816 1038

103

1886 1980
1999

2930 1160

Dollars in thousands

3042 2751

132

1774 1845

5793

132

71

4816 1038 5854
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OF F1NANCRL NSERUMENTS CON HNUED
es ants quantitative information about Level fair value measurements for financial instruments

oi nonrecurring basis at December 312012 for collateral dependent impaire loans and other real

tmpa re ioa is

al ta onstrL Sn 342

Other ii si te yr

Management and appraiser O.00% 61

adjustment for difference

between comparable sales

Sales comparison Management and appraiser

adjustmenit for difference

between comparable sales

ins ome appreac Capitalization rate

Management adjustment for

comparable sales

niniprosed Lnc 642 Sales comparison

346 Sales comparison

72 Sales comparison

Management and appraiser

adjustment for difference

between comparable sales

Management and appraiser

adjustment for difference

between comparable sales

Management and appraiser

adjusnment for difference

between comparable sales

Capitalization rate

olIov ng ta Is

iie suret sir

tstt tee

J77 Sales comparison

Sales cc mparison Management and appraiser 784o 87.43

adjustment for difference

between comparable sales

1893

Rea esO cesti

Re at orr

rume

oil 2330

16 NADA or third

party valuation of

underlying collateral

0.700-21.31

9.50C

19 03o

30

0L

esrao csidcn

esta rorni at

160

Income approach

9.820 90.00A 212

II 87

23.920 23920

000 I000
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NOTE 19 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Financial Instruments

Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities where there exists limited or no observable market data and therefore are

based primarily upon estimates are often calculated based on the economic and competitive environment the characteristics

of the asset or liability and other factors Therefore the fair value cannot be determined with precision
and may not be

realized in an actual sale or immediate settlement of the asset or liability Additionally there may be inherent weaknesses in

any calculation technique and changes in the underlying assumptions used including discount rates and estimates of future

cash flows could significantly affect current or future values

The methods and assumptions not previously presented used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments

are as follows

Cash and due from banks The carrying value of cash and due from banks approximates the fair value and are classified as

Level

Loans held for sale Loans held for sale are carried at fair value as determined by outstanding commitments from third party

investors Loans held for sale are classified as Level

Federal Home Loan Bank stock The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB stock is not practicable since no ready

market exists for the stock

Deposits The fair value of time deposits is estimated using discounted cash flow calculation that applies current interest

rates to schedule of aggregated expected maturities and is classified as Level The carrying value of nther deposits

approximates the fair value and they are classified as Level

Repurchase agreements The carrying value of repurchase agreements approximates fair value due to their short-term nature

and they are classified as Level

Short-term debt and other borrowings Fair value approximates the carrying value of other borrowings due to their short

term nature and they are classified as Level

Long-term debt The fair value of long-term debt is calculated by discounting contractual cash flows using an estimated

interest rate based on the current rates available for debt of similar remaining maturities and collateral terms resulting in

Level classification
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED NANOAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 2011

HNANOAL NSTRUMENTS CONIINUED

carry ny amer md es cmated fair values of the Banks financial instruments at December 31 2012 and Decembec 31
31 arc cs folIo

.5 3027930279

132760

259877

1865

1123

649

132760

48432

N/A N/A

1123

649

0279
2/60

264 159 /631 39

48432

N/A

1131

649

485 485 48

169376 170707 l7070
247580 247580 247530

3333 3333 33 33

25028 25028 2iONI

458 453 438

409 409 40

Dollars in thousands
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34902

3565 3563

25000

626

50
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21303

3365

29

30

62



GEQ1GL ARO1LINA
@tiw

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012 and 2011

NOTE 20 QUARTERLY ANANCIIAL DATA UNAUDITED

The following table represents summarized data for each of the quarters in 2012 and 2011

Selected Quarterly Data

Basic earnings per

common share

Diluted earnings

per common share

0.39 0.62 0.47 0.36 0.26

0.39 0.62 0.47 0.36 0.26

0.22 0.28 0.39

0.22 0.28 0.39

NOTE 21 CONDENSED HNANCAL

PARENT COMPANY ONLY
NFORMATION ON GEORGACAROUNA BANCSHARES INC

Assets

Cash

Investment in subsidiary

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deferred tax liahility

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

2012

683

55383

317

56383

SI

58

83

89

2012 2011

4Q 3Q 2Q 1Q 4Q 3Q 2Q JQ

rio/lao in rhousands except per share data

Interest income 488 5200 5226 5256 5379 5489 5738 5717

Interestexpense 649 945 1016 1072 1164 1352 1512 1674

Net interest income 4238 4255 4210 4184 4215 413 4226 4043

Provision for loan losses 306 729 125 305 520 656 452 99

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 4544 4984 4085 3879 3695 3481 3774 3944

Non-interest income 3529 4824 3484 2921 2983 2886 2383 2898

Securities gain loss 16 44 14

Other-than-temporary

mpairment on securities 38
Less Non-interest expenses 6323 5065 4966 5354 5252 4775 4746

Income before income

tax expense 1634 3312 2504 1834 1368 1115 1396 2058

Incometaxexpense 242 801 550 430 326 415 667

Net income 1392 2242 1703 1284 938 789 981 1391

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands

2011

492

49803

239

$5O534

56325 50445

56383 $50534
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EL LNSFD HNAN1AL NFORMATON ON GEORGACAROUNA BANCSHARES
fri ONlY CONINUED

Condensed Statements of ncome

Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands

2012 2011

ncome divide ds from subsidiary 1500

Expense

2irct CO open

lCga tes

\udit Cxa st and ur ting fees

\nnua
redort

nd ox

ir holder scrvi

consul ing fees

the
total xp nsr 229 252

6621 4099

Condensed Statements of Cash Hows

Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands

Cash fk ror crating activities

it iiC one

djust nts tile ne income to net

ash rc vidcd dv operating activities

Pr vise ICtC income taxes

Pt IC OF

StoC Inlpcn

Cuiy an letri

hng thC

ia ige
tti ss

Net cas provdd ooerating activiies

ws rom icng atvilies

14 tror optior e\ercised

RepuiC hasC Cl ci

Dividend

Net cash ov ed b5 used ri nancmg activities

8et ease in id due ro hacks

is Cl due ri Ci at hC
gi ining period

aish id duE fr inks at nd of period

56

73

42

20

27

33

56

nC ss pCorre tax henehts and equity in undistribLited earnings cu subsidiary 1271

1CC1 ix mn tit 75

ncorre ioss xio equity undistributed earnings of subsidiary 1346

Equity undistribu cd earniiigs of subsidiary

252

76

17

4275

uted ea nings of subsidiary

lities

2012

6621

143

209

3173
t32

2011

099

log

268

4272

78 lOt

1589 98

233 73

1219
i432

398 78

191 76

492 316

683 492
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Senior Vice President Renee Wright Paula Anderson

City Executive-Columbia Counti Vice President Mortgage Offk

Office Manager
Paula BeattyShelia Stuberfield

Senior Vice Iresident Tina Bland \4ort gage Compliance Office

Retail Manager Assistant Vice Presidert
Ali Hargrove

Sssistant Otfice lana
gel Bak OfficerVicki Blum

Vice President MicheUe Cunningham Assistant Oft/ce Manage

Wholesale Mortgage Department Issistant Vice President
Leslie Kromke

Retail Liaison
Darrell Byrd Mortgage Office

Vice Pesident Cheryl Dawson
Michele Stevenson

Bcsiness Banket Assistant Vicc President
Operations Officer

Opec tiOns lana
gel

Renee Douglas Bookkeepiig Super isor

Vice President Jane Drake

ontrollei Assistant Vice President

Issistant Ohice lanagei
Joyce Fran kenfield

Vir Prpciclpl Jerry Dunn

Internal Acdit Coordinator ssistan Vice President

tnforrna tion lechnolngy Officer
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Ihomas Hourno

Samud Fow er

Arthur Cay Jr

George Inman

David Joeshury Sr

Jefferson

JohnW Lee

James mley

\VHUam McKnght

Montague WiDe

Robert Wilso Jr

Bennye Young

GEOftGIACAROLINA BANCSHARES INC
DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

OCCUIATION

President Chief Executive Officer

Vice Chairman of the Board First Bank of Georgia

Cardiologist Augusta Cardiology Clinic P.C

Principal Phillip Farr CPA P.C

Senior Vice President Chiei Financial Officer Secretary

Attorney Fowler Wills Attorneys at Law

President and Chief Executive Officer and Associates Inc

land development and consulting

Chairman retired Club Car Inc

President Joeshury Insurance Agencr Inc

Managing Partner Knox Ltd Executive Director Knox Foundation

President and Chief Operating Officer retired GIW Industries Inc

Physician and Managing Partner McDuffie Medical Associ ftes

President McKn ight Construction Company

Attorney at Law President and Chief Executive Officer retired Club Car In

Principal Wilson Finance Corporation and Wilson Ven ures Inc

real estate and insurance sales

Homemaker
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GEORGIACAROLINA BANGS HARES INC
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Stock Market Listing

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc common stock is listed on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the

symbol of GECR

Corporate Offices

3527 Wheeler Road

Augusta GA 30909

Telephone 706 731-6600

Subsidiary

First Bank of Georgia

Member FDIC

Annual Meeting

The Companys Annual Meeting of Shareholders will he held Monday May 20 2013 at 400 p.m in the Lobby

of the Corporate Headquarters and Main Office 3527 Wheeler Road Augusta Georgia 30909

Financial hiformation

Financial analysts and interested investors desiring information regarding Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc

should contact the President Chief Executive Officer Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc Post Office Box

15148 Augusta Georgia 30919-1 148 Additional information regarding First Bank of Georgia may be obtained

on the internet at www.firsthankofga.com or by calling 706 731-6600

Annual Report on Form 10-K

copy of the Companys 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission is available free of charge by contacting the Chief Financial Officer Georgia-Carolina Bancshares

Inc Post Office Box 15148 Augusta GA 30919-1 148

Stock Transfer Agent Registrar Dividend Paying Agent

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares Inc Transfer Agent is Registrar and Transfer Company 10 Commerce Drive

Cranford New Jersey 070 16-3572 They are available to assist you with change of address replacement of lost

certificates or duplicate 1099 requests

Legal

Special Legal Counsel General Counsel General Counsel

Smith Gambrell Russell L.L.P Warlick Tritt Stebbins Fowler Wills

Suite 3100 Promenade II Murray L.L.P 318 Jackson Street

1230 Peachtree Street 699 Broad Street Suite 1500 Thomson GA 30824

Atlanta GA 30309-3592 Augusta GA 30901

Independent Accountants

Crowe Horwath LLP

3399 Peachtree Road NE Suite 700

Atlanta GA 30326



FirstBank
OF GEORGIA

Danie Viflage Office

2805 Writ htsboro Road

Auu GA 30909

West Town Office

3820 Washington Road

Martinez GA 30907

FirstBark
MORTGAGE

OuR LOCATIoNS

Savannah

7395 Hodgson Memorial Drive

Suite 201

Savannah GA 31406

Pooler

138 Canal Street Suite 204

Pooler GA 31322

Augusta GA 30904

Hil Street Office

110 East Hill Street

Thomson GA 30824

Augusta

27A Perimeter Parkway

Bulding 100 Suite 100

Augusta GA 30909

OST OFFICE Box 13148 AUGUSTA GEORGIA 3O9191148


